
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Philippa Turvey on 01733 452460 as soon as possible.

AB
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 3 MARCH 2015
1.30 PM

Bourges / Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Members' Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward 
Councillor

4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on:

4.1 20 January 2015 5 - 14

4.2 3 February 2015 15 - 20

5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 14/01781/FUL - Guthrie House, Rightwell, East Bretton, 
Peterborough

21 - 36

5.2 14/02078/FUL - Guthrie House, Rightwell, East Bretton, 
Peterborough

37 - 42

5.3 14/02126/OUT - Rear of 39 Station Road, Thorney, 
Peterborough

43 - 56

Public Document Pack



5.4 14/02145/FUL - 17 Castor Road, Marholm, Peterborough, PE6 
7JA

57 - 68

5.5 East Coast Main Line Level Crossing Closure 69 - 82

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recordi
ng.pdf

Committee Members:

Councillors: C Harper (Chairman), L Serluca (Vice Chairman), G Casey, P Hiller, N North, 
J Stokes, Sylvester, S Martin, D Harrington and C Ash

Substitutes: Councillors: B Rush, N Shabbir and B Saltmarsh

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Philippa Turvey on telephone 01733 
452460 or by email – philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


CASE OFFICERS:

Planning and Development Team: Nicholas Harding, Lee Collins, Andrew Cundy, Paul Smith, 
Mike Roberts, Louise Lewis, Janet Maclennan, Astrid 
Hawley, David Jolley, Louise Lovegrove, Vicky Hurrell, 
Amanda McSherry, Sam Falco, Matt Thomson, Chris 
Edwards, Michael Freeman

Minerals and Waste: Theresa Nicholl, Alan Jones

Compliance: Nigel Barnes, Anthony Whittle, Karen Cole, Julie Robshaw

NOTES:

1. Any queries on completeness or accuracy of reports should be raised with the Case Officer 
or Head of Planning, Transport and Engineering Services as soon as possible.

2. The purpose of location plans is to assist Members in identifying the location of the site.  
Location plans may not be up-to-date, and may not always show the proposed development.  

3. These reports take into account the Council's equal opportunities policy but have no 
implications for that policy, except where expressly stated.

4. The background papers for planning applications are the application file plus any documents 
specifically referred to in the report itself.

5. These reports may be updated orally at the meeting if additional relevant information is 
received after their preparation.



This page is intentionally left blank



AB
    MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 20 JANUARY 2015

Members Present: Councillors Harper (Chair), Serluca (Vice-Chair) Casey, Hiller, North, 
Stokes, Martin, Sylvester, Ash and Harrington

Officers Present:  Lee Collins, Development Management Manager
Vicky Hurrell, Principal Development Management Officer
Amanda McSherry, Principal Development Management Officer
Simon Ireland, Principal Engineer (Highway Control)
Jez Tuttle, Principal Engineer (Development)
Ruth Lea, Planning and Highways Lawyer
Pippa Turvey, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence

No apologies for absence were received.

2. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Ash declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 5.1, as he had received 
an email from Mr Paul Froggitt regarding the application and was acquainted with him, 
however had not discussed any aspect of the application with him. Councillor Ash also 
noted that although he referred agenda item 5.2 to the Committee, he had maintained 
an open mind as to the application. 

Councillor Casey declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 5.1, as one of the 
speakers in objection to the application was his Parish Councillor.

Councillor Stokes declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 5.1, as she had 
received an email from Mr Paul Froggitt regarding the application and was on the Parish 
Council with him, however had not discussed any aspect of the application with him.

Councillor Sylvester declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 5.1, as she was 
acquainted with one of the public speakers, however she maintained an open mind as to 
the application.

Councillor North declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 5.1, as he was 
acquainted with him Mr Paul Froggitt and the public speakers, however maintained an 
open mind as to the application.

3.    Members’ Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward Councillor

There were no declarations of intention to make representations as Ward Councillor.

4. Minutes of the Meetings held on 16 December 2014

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2014 were approved as a correct 
record.

5



5.    Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 09/01368/OUT – Land to the North of Norman Cross, East of the A1(M) and West of 
London Road (A15), Peterborough

The planning application was for the development of land to the north of Norman Cross, 
east of the A1(M) and west of London Road (A15), Peterborough into an urban 
extension comprising of up to 5,350 residential dwellings, a district centre (with up to 
9,200 square metres of retail floor space) and two neighbourhood centres (with up to 
2,300 square metres of retail floor space) comprising of district / neighbourhood retail, 
community and health, leisure, residential and commercial uses. Provision for education 
facilities, sports and recreational facilities, a range of strategic open spaces including 
new landscaping, woodland and allotments and cemetery provision were also included 
in the application. Associated highway infrastructure (including pedestrian, bridleway 
and cycle routes), public transport infrastructure and car parking for all uses were to be 
provided as well as utilities, renewable energy infrastructure, and foul and surface water 
drainage networks (including SuDs and lakes).

The application was first presented to Members of the Planning and Environmental 
Protection Committee on 19 March 2013. At that meeting Members resolved to approve 
the application subject to:

a) A further report back to Committee to agree the finer detail and design of the 
Yaxley loop road

b) A report back to Committee to agree the review mechanism for the S106
c) The conditions as set out in the original report and the Update Report

The main considerations set out in the report were:
 Further detail on the function of the Yaxley Loop
 Review Mechanism for the Section 106 Agreement
 Conditions

It was officer’s recommendation that planning permission be granted, for the reasons set 
out in the report.

The Development Management Manager and the Principal Development Management 
Officer provided an overview of the application and raised the following key points:

 The Committee had previously approved the alignment of the ‘Yaxley Loop’. 
Before the Committee now was purely information on the design of the route.

 The drawings submitted showed a single carriageway with two lanes for turning. 
Footpaths were proposed along the roadway, which were to be wider around the 
school sites. There would be limited access points from residential parcels.

 The busiest part of the road would be around the school and district centre. This 
was proposed to have traffic light controls, pedestrian crossings and a town 
square designed to control speed and create a safe space for pedestrians. It was 
not believed that this would discourage use of the road.

 The junctions at either end of the ‘Loop’ would require drivers to physically turn 
off from the natural sweep of the road in order to travel through Yaxley.

 These junctions would be in place early on, along with traffic calming measures 
throughout Yaxley.

 A new approach to the affordable housing allocation within the Section 106 Legal 
Agreement had been proposed. Previously an initial allocation of 7.5% affordable 
housing had been proposed, with subsequent trigger points set out for its 
increase.

6



 Further viability assessments had been undertaken and a fixed rate of 16% 
affordable housing had been proposed. It was thought that this option presented 
less risk and guaranteed a higher amount of affordable housing.

Councillor Ian Allin and Councillor Chris York, Norman Cross Action Group, addressed 
the Committee in objection to the application and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

 Mr Allin believed that, as a major ‘A’ road, it would be difficult to divert traffic 
away from the A15.

 It was suggested that the A15 could traverse straight down the middle of the 
development, with overhead roundabouts for access.

 The preferred suggestion of Mr Allin was that the A15 travel from Parnwell 
Junction, down the Fletton Parkway to join the A1(M) at Junction 17. This was 
already a fast and suitable road.

 Councillor York reminded the Committee that decision regarding the application 
needed to be taken in consultation with Cambridgeshire County Council.

 The proposed ‘Yaxley Loop’ need to be attractive to use and more desirable than 
going through the Yaxley in respect of fuel costs.

 Ease of traffic movement was required, included no parking and minimal traffic 
lights. 

 Pollution levels were detrimental to residents and would be detrimental to 
Peterborough’s aim of being the Environmental Capital of the UK.

 The capacity figures provided by the application did not seem to reflect the true 
capacity of the road.

Ms Heather Pugh, David Lock Associates, Mr Ron Henry, Peter Brett Associates, and 
David Shaw, Mr David Shaw Planning, addressed the Committee in support of the 
application and responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points 
highlighted included:

 Mr Henry maintained that the 30 mile per hour speed limit on the road would not 
affect its capacity, which had been fully checked with future growth accounted 
for. 

 Traffic modelling had been undertaken for the proposal.
 Downgrading the A15 to ‘B’ road status was not a bad idea, however not the 

focus of the application before the Committee.
 Traffic levels and capacity would continue to be monitored throughout the 

development and into the future.
 Matters such as noise and air quality had been considered as part of an 

Environmental Impact Assessment.
 This assessment had also considered the sustainability of the proposal. 

Infrastructure provisions, public transport and sustainable travel had all been 
included with the proposal.

 Mr Shaw believed that the urban extension would be an example of 
environmental good practice. There would be an increase in traffic, however this 
increase would be carried out in the best way possible.

The Committee were happy with the updated recommendations for the allocation of 
affordable housing and considered this a positive result. 

Several Members of the Committee highlighted the importance of getting the ‘Loop’ 
design right. The Committee believed that the proposed junctions on and off the ‘Yaxley 
Loop’ were well designed and would encourage drivers to follow the road away from 
Yaxley, as it would be a physical task to do otherwise.

7



The Committee were pleased to hear that the applicant intended to focus attention to 
public transport within the site and to the city centre. 

The Planning and Highways Lawyer advised the Committee that the only aspects of the 
application to be considered at this time were the functionality of the proposed ‘Loop’ 
road and the affordable housing allocation within the Section 106 Agreement.

In response to questions from the Committee the Principal Engineer (Development) 
explained that the Fletton Parkway was currently undergoing widening work to 
discourage use of the A15. Junction design, signage and timing of signals, along with 
additional tools, could all be used to ensure that the ‘Yaxley Loop’ was the most 
attractive choice.

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation. The motion was carried eight in favour, one voting against and 
one abstaining from voting.

RESOLVED: (eight voted for, one voted against and one abstained from voting) that 
planning permission is GRANTED subject to:

i) The conditions set out in the report;
ii) The satisfactory completion of an obligation under the provisions of Section 106 

of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990; and
iii) Any changes to conditions relating to Orton Pit SSSI / SAC which may be 

requested by Natural England during Section 106 discussions.

Reasons for the decision

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable having 
been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighting against 
relevant policies of the development plan and specifically: 

 The Great Haddon urban extension was allocated in the adopted Core Strategy 
and the adopted Site Allocations DPD. The principle of development was therefore 
acceptable in accordance with the policies CS1, CS2, CS3 and CS5 of the 
adopted Core Strategy and policy SA1 of the Site Allocations DPD.

 Following detailed assessment of the transport modelling the impact of the 
development on the surrounding highway network was considered to be 
acceptable in accordance with policy CS14 of the Adopted Core Strategy, policy 
PP12 of the adopted Planning Policies DPD and the National Planning Policy 
Framework.
 

 Through the provisions of the Travel Plan and funding for the bus service, to be 
secured as part of the S106 Agreement, the development was considered to make 
adequate provision for sustainable travel in accordance with policy CS14 of the 
adopted Core Strategy;

 The amount of retail floorspace in the new district and local centres was 
considered to be appropriate for the scale and the size of development and it 
would not unacceptably impact upon the vitality and viability of any existing centre. 
The proposal therefore accords with policy CS15 of the adapted Core Strategy.

8



 It was accepted that as a result of the development the existing rural character of 
the site would be permanently altered. However, a strategic decision had been 
made to develop this site in the adopted Core Strategy. In this context, the visual 
impact of the development was considered to be acceptable in accordance with 
policies CS5 and CS16 of the adopted Core Strategy.

 Following review of all aspects of the development the impact of the development 
on the amenity of neighbouring residents was considered to be acceptable in 
accordance with polices CS14 and CS16 of the Adopted Core Strategy and policy 
PP3 of the Planning Policies DPD.

 Subject to detailed design it was considered that the development will be able to 
afford future residents an acceptable level of amenity in accordance with policy 
PP4 of the adopted Planning Policies DPD.

 The potential impacts of the development on Orton Pit SSSI/SAC could be 
acceptably mitigated via the creation of a buffer zone and through the access 
control measures proposed. The development was, therefore, considered to be 
acceptable in accordance with policy CS21 of the adopted Core Strategy and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

 Other ecological impacts of the development can also be acceptable mitigated so 
the development accords with policy CS21 of the adopted Core Strategy and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.

 The impact of the development on existing trees and hedgerows within/adjoining 
the site was considered to be acceptable subject to the imposition of conditions 
requiring more detailed assessment as development comes forward and 
protection measures. New landscaping would also be planted, including the 
provision of new hedgerows. The development was, therefore, considered to be 
acceptable in accordance with policy CS21 of the adopted Core Strategy and 
policy PP16 of the adopted Planning Policies DPD.

 In light of the archaeological assessment carried out and the proposed buffer zone 
the relationship of the development with the SAM was considered to be 
acceptable. Further archaeological assessment would be required by condition as 
the development progresses. It was therefore considered to accord with the 
National Planning Policy Framework, policy Cs17 of the adopted Core Strategy 
and policy PP17 of the Planning Polices DPD.

 Following assessment of the submitted information it was considered that the site 
can be adequately drained and would not give rise to an increased risk of flooding 
in accordance with policy CS22 of the adopted Core Strategy and the National 
Planning Policy Framework;

 Via the imposition of a condition it was considered that the development would 
make a contribution towards the Council’s Environment Capital objectives in 
accordance with policy CS10 of the adopted Core Strategy.

 Subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement it was considered that the 
development would make sufficient contribution towards the infrastructure 
requirements arising from it. It therefore accorded with policies CS12 and CS13 of 
the adopted Core Strategy.

9



5.2 14/01560/FUL – 63 Sycamore Avenue, Dogsthorpe, Peterborough, PE1 4JP

The planning application was for a proposed single storey extension to a restaurant at 
63 Sycamore Avenue, Dogsthorpe. 

The main considerations were the siting, scale and design of the extension.

It was officer’s recommendation that planning permission be granted, for the reasons set 
out in the report.

The Principal Development Management Officer provided an overview of the application 
and raised the following key points:

 The proposal was for a single storey extension to the existing restaurant site. A 
new car parking layout had been proposed alongside the extension.

 Ward Councillors Miners and Saltmarsh has submitted representations outlining 
the current problems faced with car parking in the area, welcoming any 
improvements proposed. Councillor Miners further welcomed conditions 
restricting firework use on the site.

 The management had stated that they would be doing all they could to ensure 
the proper conduct of their customers in relation to parking.

 The design of the extension was considered to be in keeping with the height and 
design of the existing dwelling, and was recommended for approval. There was 
not considered to be overbearing or overshadowing impact.

 Twelve extra car parking spaces would be provided with the extension, bringing 
the total to thirty-nine spaces. This was three less than the maximum standard 
and was considered acceptable.

The Committee was pleased to see that work was being undertaken to improve the site. 
The Committee further discussed the clarity of the entrance and egress of the car park, 
and enquired as to whether appropriate fencing could be included as a condition.

The Principal Development Management Officer clarified that a condition could be 
added to any planning permission in relation to boundary treatment, to find a suitable 
solution. Condition three could also be strengthened in relation to the car park lay out 
and line out of spaces.

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation, with the strengthening of condition three in relation to the lay 
out and lining of the car park, and an additional condition regarding boundary treatment. 
The motion was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED: (unanimous) that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the 
conditions set out in the report and:

i) The strengthening of condition three in relation to the lay out and lining of the car 
park; and

ii) The addition of a condition in relation to boundary treatment.

Reasons for the decision

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable having 
been assessed in light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant 
policies of the development plan and specifically:

10



 The siting, scale and design of the proposed extension was considered to be 
visually compatible for the site and the surrounding streetscene.

 The proposed car parking provision was considered on balance to be sufficient 
for the extended restaurant proposed.

 The proposed extension would not adversely reduce the current residential 
amenity of neighbours in terms of any overbearing or overshadowing impacts.  

 The proposal was therefore considered to be in accordance with Policy CS16 of 
the Core Strategy, and Policies PP02, PP03 and PP12 of the Planning Policies 
DPD.  

5.3 14/02013/FUL – Land to the East of 9 Windmill Street, Millfield, Peterborough

The planning application was for the change of use of land to the east of 9 Windmill 
Street, Millfield from car parking lot and domestic garden to car sales.

The main considerations were:
 Impact of residential amenity
 Highway implications

It was officer’s recommendation that planning permission be refused, for the reasons set 
out in the report.

The Development Management Manager provided an overview of the application and 
raised the following key points:

 The site was neighboured on either side by residential dwellings.
 At current the site was gated. This gate would be retained, however moved 

further into the site. The office building on the site would be retained and 
repositioned.

 The front of the site would contain three visitor car parking spaces and one staff 
car parking space. 

 The rear of the site would be used to sell cars, with a maximum of five cars on 
site at a time. It was proposed that business would operate on an appointment 
only basis.

 One objection had been received. A petition containing sixty signatures and eight 
letters had been received in support of the application. 

 Pre-application advice had been provided to the applicant that this proposal was 
considered by officers to be unacceptable.

 It was believed that the proposal would represent an intensification of use that 
could not be reasonably controlled through the use of conditions. The support of 
residents did not negate the negative impact on residential amenity.

 It was required within policy that a site of the use applied for have sufficient 
parking and turning space for delivery vehicles. The application site did not meet 
this requirement

Councillor Nadeem, Ward Councillor, was unable attend the Committee meeting, 
however his representation was read out by the Senior Democratic Services Officer. In 
summary the key points highlighted included:

 The proposal would be a less intense use than that already existing.
 The area was used for several varied commercial activities, which generated 

commercial noise.
 Deliveries could be covered by conditions.
 An appointment based system would be used, which would monitor the 

business.
 Sound reduction measures could be conditioned. The current level of 

11



surrounding noise was much greater than that of the proposal.
 The site would, in reality, have minimal impact on the area.

Mr Barry Nicholls, Architectural and Surveying Services Ltd, addressed the Committee 
in support of the application and responded to questions from Members. In summary the 
key points highlighted included:

 The site would not be permanently manned. Only when a prior arrangement 
appointment was scheduled would the owner be on site.

 No car transport was proposed for use, the owner would drive each car to the 
site. If one was necessary it would be a single car transporter only.

 Noise reduction could be achieved. The application would be happy to follow the 
Committee’s suggestions.

 The appointment system proposed would be applied and the application would 
accept conditions proposed regarding this. When the owner was not on sire the 
gates would be shut, with signage outlining the appointment system.

 In reality the proposal would have a positive impact on the surrounding area.
 If required the application would be happy for a condition to renew the boundary 

fencing to be included within the planning permission.
 The parking available to individuals at present would no longer be available 

within the proposed scheme.
 The Committee were shown several video clips of commercial activity in the 

surrounding area, highlighting the nature of noise that was already experienced 
on the site.

In response to a question from a Member of the Committee, the Principal Engineer 
(Highway Control) advised that policy PP13 required commercial car sites to have 
sufficient room for car transporter manoeuvrability, to off load off the highway and turn 
on site.

The Committee questioned whether a condition could be put in place to ensure that a 
car transporter vehicle was not used on the site and that an appointment based system 
maintained. 

The Planning and Highways Lawyer advised that any conditions added to an application 
needed to be necessary and enforceable. The Development Management Manager 
further advised that it was considered that such conditions would not be enforceable or 
reasonable.

The Committee sympathised with the applicant’s intentions, however considered that 
there was no a practical way to condition and regulate the proposed application, it would 
not be appropriate to grant planning permission. The Committee believed, however, that 
objections in relation to the intensification of noise were not justified to include as a 
reason for refusal. 

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be refused, for the 
reason that the site could not provide for the turning of a large car transported vehicle 
that would need to visit the site. The motion was carried seven in favour and three 
abstaining to vote.

RESOLVED: (seven voted in favour, three abstained from voting) that planning 
permission is REFUSED for the reason given below.

Reasons for the decision

12



The proposal was unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material 
considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of the development plan and 
for the specific reason:

R1 The site could not provide for the turning of a large car transporter vehicle that 
would need to visit the site.  As a consequence the manoeuvring of such 
vehicles would cause danger to the users of the adjoining public highway 
contrary to policies PP12 and PP13 of the Adopted Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD 2012.

Chairman
1.30pm – 3.52pm

13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



AB
    MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 3 FEBRUARY 2015

Members Present: Councillors Harper (Chair), Serluca (Vice-Chair) Casey, Hiller, North, 
Stokes, Martin, Sylvester, Ash and Harrington

Officers Present:  Nick Harding, Head of Development and Construction
Simon Ireland, Principal Engineer (Highway Control)
Ruth Lea, Planning and Highways Lawyer
Pippa Turvey, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence

No apologies for absence were received.

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3.    Members’ Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward Councillor

There were no declarations of intention to make representations as Ward Councillor.

4. Minutes of the Meetings held on 6 January 2015

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 January 2015 were approved as a correct record.

5.    Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 14/01393/FUL – Unit B, Vision House, Fengate, Peterborough

The planning application was for a proposed car park at Unit B, Vision House, Fengate, 
Peterborough.

The main considerations set out in the report were:
 Highway Implications
 Loss of Employment Use
 Visual Amenity
 Flood Risk

It was officer’s recommendation that planning permission be granted with delegated 
authority to approve the relevant conditions.

The Head of Development and Construction provided an overview of the application and 
raised the following key points:

 The site had no set out vehicular access or parking on site, which the application 
intended to rectify. 

 Previous, similar applications had been refused for proposal to place vehicular 
access at the side of the site, rather than the middle.

 Currently, there was evidence that despite the absence of a dropped kerb 

15



vehicles were currently accessing the site 
 The application was thought to be acceptable, subject to consideration of the 

visibility splay towards Boongate. This visibility splay was short of the required 
length by 4 metres.

 The Highways Authority recommended refusal of the application, on the grounds 
of insufficient visibility.

 However, as the area of land adjacent to the visibility splay was clear and 
unlikely to be developed on, officer recommendation was to grant the 
application. 

Councillor Nadeem, Ward Councillor, submitted a representation to the Committee 
which was set out in the Update Report. The Chairman confirmed that the Committee 
had read this submission.

The Committee emphasised the importance of the Highways Authority’s 
recommendation and apportioned significant weight to it. It was suggested that to refuse 
the application on the basis of 4 metres would be unreasonable, as the current situation 
was considered to be worse than that proposed. 

The Principal Engineer (Highway Control) advised that as the visibility splay from the 
access fell short of requirements in one direction, refusal had been recommended by 
the Highway’s Authority.  The Principal Engineer (Highways Control) confirmed that the 
speed limit on the road was 30mph and further that the accident data showed very few 
accidents in the vicinity.  It was noted that when the adjacent land, which was not within 
the application site, was considered, the 47 metre required visibility was achieved.  

The Committee believed that the proposal was an improvement on the current situation 
of the site and felt it should encourage economic development.

 
A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation. The motion was carried by nine votes, with one abstaining from 
voting.

RESOLVED: (nine voted in favour, one abstained from voting) that planning permission 
is GRANTED with delegated authority to the Head of Construction and Development to 
approve the relevant conditions.

Reasons for the decision

The proposal was in accordance with Council policy save the length of visibility splay. It 
was considered that the requisite amount of visibility splay was not significantly less 
than provided in the Manual for Streets guidance.  In taking into consideration that 
visibility could be achieved when considering the adjacent land and that it was unlikely 
that future development of the adjacent land would impact upon visibility, the application 
was acceptable.

5.2 14/02110/FUL – 83 Thorpe Road, Peterborough, PE3 6JQ

The planning application was to retain an existing 15 metre high temporary mast support 
for 3 antennas at 83 Thorpe Road, Peterborough, temporary radio equipment housing 
and ancillary development, including a temporary fenced compound for 12 months. 

The main considerations set out in the report were:
 Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area
 Impact upon neighbour amenity

16



 Highways implications
 Radiation and public health

It was officer’s recommendation that planning permission be granted, for the reasons set 
out in the report.

The Head of Development and Construction provided an overview of the application and 
raised the following key points:

 The background to the application involved the demolition of the hospital. The 
applicant had a mast on the hospital site that was removed, with the application 
site used as an interim measure.

 A permanent site had been identified and established, however the coverage 
had not been as comprehensive as predicted. As such, the interim site was 
maintained, while a second permanent site was found.

 Initially the temporary mast had a diesel engine attached to it, which generated a 
significant amount of noise. 

 This generator had been removed and Environmental Health had been satisfied 
that noise complaints had been sufficiently addressed.

 The applicant had originally requested a temporary permission until September 
2015, however officer recommendation was to grant a permission until 3 August 
2015.

Councillor Fitzgerald, Ward Councillor, addressed the Committee and responded to 
questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

 The applicants knew the hospital would be demolished and should have planned 
accordingly. It should not have taken this long to find a permanent solution.

 The local residents experienced substantial disturbance while the diesel engine 
was in situ. Although the situation had significantly improved, additional 
background noise still occurred at night.

 Residents were in the process of putting together a petition on the topic.
 It was suggested that instead of a six month temporary permission, a three 

month permission be granted.
 The temporary structure had an overbearing impact on local residents.
 Residents had expressed concern about the mast becoming a permanent fixture 

on the site.

The Head of Development and Construction clarified that the end date for the temporary 
permission of 3 August that had been recommended by officers represented a twelve 
month period from the time the previous permission had expired. The mast may have 
been in place for longer than this.

Jenny Bye, Waldon Telecom Ltd, addressed the Committee in support of the application 
and responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted 
included:

 It was accepted that the diesel engine on the site was unsuitable, which had now 
been rectified and replaced with a domestic air conditioning unit.

 It had taken a long time to find a suitable alternative site for a permanent mast. 
One had recently been identified near the Thorpe Meadows roundabout. 
Consultation in relation to this site would begin shortly.

 It may be possible to have a permanent site ready in three months, however it 
would be a tight timescale.

 The feasibility of such a timescale would depend upon whether a permanent site 
was granted planning permission or not. 

 It was explained that a permanent site had been established prior to the 

17



demolition of the hospital, however this had provided insufficient coverage. As 
such, a second permanent site had to now be found.

 Assurance was given that a permanent site would be found as quickly as 
possible.

 No communication had been provided to residents and it was accepted that this 
was an error.

The Head of Development and Construction advised that a three month timescale to 
find, secure and construct a permanent mast site would be tight and that the applicants 
would be able to apply for an extension to the temporary permission if required. 

The Committee sympathised with residents’ objections and suggested that 
communication had been poorly handled by the applicant. Concern was raised in 
relation to the possibility of an increase of noise in the summer months. It was 
suggested that, although not ideal, the applicant needed sufficient time to establish an 
alternative site for the mast.

In response the questions from the Committee the Head of Development and 
Construction clarified that if the mast was found to be operating beyond the noise limits 
stipulated in any permission granted, enforcement action could be taken. It was noted 
that if the application were to be refused and the applicant appealed, the temporary 
mast would be allowed to stay in place until any appeal was determined.

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation. The motion was carried by eight votes, with two voting against.

RESOLVED: (eight voted in favour, two voted against) that planning permission is 
GRANTED subject to the conditions set out in the report.

Reasons for the decision

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable having 
been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against 
relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:
 the retention of the mast and its supporting infrastructure would not result in any 

unacceptable level of harm to the character, appearance or visual amenity of the 
surrounding area, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD 
(2012);

 the plant associated with the telecoms mast would not result in any unacceptable 
level of disturbance and harm to the amenities of neighbouring occupants, in 
accordance with paragraph 123 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2012), Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 the retention of the mast would not result in any unacceptable impact to the 
adjacent public highway, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Planning Policies 
DPD (2012); and

 the application had been accompanied by a certificate confirming accordance with 
the International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation, in accordance with 
paragraph 43 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012).

5.3 14/02166/OUT – Land to the South of Constantine Drive, Stanground South, 
Peterborough

18



The planning application was for the erection of 14 dwellings to the south of Constantine 
Drive, Stanground South, Peterborough. 

The main considerations set out in the report were:
 Principle of Development
 Connections to other developments within the urban extensions
 Layout, design and amenity provision
 Highway safety and parking
 Contamination
 Archaeology
 Drainage
 Development contributions

It was officer’s recommendation that planning permission be granted, for the reasons set 
out in the report and update report.

The Head of Development and Construction provided an overview of the application and 
raised the following key points:

 The application before the Committee was outline in nature, the only detail 
provided was the access point. This access was identical to the access of a 
scheme already provided with planning permission.

 The land had initially been allocated for a Local Centre, specifically a nursery 
and health centre. No development of this nature and been attracted despite 
comprehensive. As such, it was considered that release of the land for 
residential use was appropriate.

 No access to the site was planning for directly opposite the nearby school. 
 With the reserved matters application the site would need to adhere to parking 

standards.
 Several amendments to conditions were set out in the update report.
 The Highways Authority had suggested a condition in relation to parking 

restrictions, however the area in questions was not within the application site, so 
could not be addressed via condition.

Tim Slater, 3D Planning Ltd, addressed the Committee in support of the application and 
responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

 Mr Slater thanked the planning officers for their excellent service during the 
application process.

 It was advised that the manner by which the gate would operate was something 
that would be considered in the reserved matters stage of the application.

 A noise consultant had considered the proposals. It was considered that 
deliveries to local business entered mainly from the south, away from the site.

 The traffic levels generated from a residential development would be much less 
than the previously proposed nursery and health centre.

 A single access had been proposed so that no conflict arose with school traffic.
 The design and access to dwellings would be determined at the reserved 

matters stage.
 Pedestrian access was available around the site to the nearby supermarket.

The Committee considered that many of the matters that caused concern were relevant 
to the reserved matters stage of the application, not the outline stage. Several members 
of the Committee expressed concern that traffic with the school may present a problem. 
It was further noted that a health centre was an important service. 

The Head of Development and Construction advised that sufficient work had gone into 

19



promoting the site as a health centre and nursery, and no interest had been 
forthcoming. It was advised that once the road adjacent to the site was adopted, parking 
restrictions could be put in place.

The Committee suggested that the site would benefit from development, rather than 
being left empty.

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, as per 
officer recommendation. The motion was carried by eight votes, with two voting against.

RESOLVED: (eight voted in favour, two voted against) that planning permission is 
GRANTED subject to the signing of a LEGAL AGREEMENT and the conditions set out 
in the report and update report.

Reasons for the decision

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal was acceptable having 
been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against 
relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:
 whilst the proposal would result in the loss of a portion of the allocated Local 

Centre, it was not considered that the loss of the land would result in any 
unacceptable impact to the provision of services and facilities of residents of the 
Urban Extension;

 the application site was considered an appropriate location for residential 
development which would provide good connections to the wider South 
Stanground Urban Extension, in accordance with Policies CS1 and CS16 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011);

 the overall density of the proposal would mirror the existing wider development of 
Cardea, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 the proposal would afford an acceptable level of amenity for future occupants, in 
accordance with Policy PP4 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 the proposal would provide safe access for all users, in accordance with Policy 
CS14 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 subject to appropriate remediation, the site would not pose any unacceptable risk 
to human health, in accordance with paragraph 121 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (2012) and Policy PP20 of the Peterborough Planning Policies 
DPD (2012);

 the site had already been subject to archaeological evaluation and it was 
considered that there was little potential for undiscovered remains, in accordance 
with paragraph 128 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy 
CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP17 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 the proposal would not result in unacceptable flood risk elsewhere, in accordance 
with Policy CS22 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011); and

 the Applicant had agreed to enter into a Section 106 legal agreement to secure a 
financial contribution towards the infrastructure demands generated by the 
proposal, in accordance with Policies CS12 and CS13 of the Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD (2011) and the Peterborough Planning Obligations Implementation 
Scheme SPD (2010).

Chairman
1.30pm – 3:20pm

20



21



This page is intentionally left blank

22



Planning and EP Committee 3 March 2015 Item 1

Application Ref: 14/01781/FUL 

Proposal: Extension to create 13 new flats

Site: Guthrie House, Rightwell East, Bretton, Peterborough

Applicant: Mr Andrew Winterton, Bretton Green Ltd
Agent: Mr P Hand, Jefferon Sheard Architects

Referred by: Bretton Parish Council 
Reason: Proposal is out of keeping with the surrounding area; lack of parking; 

inadequate pedestrian crossing; and increased traffic volumes in the area 

Site visit: 25.11.2014

Case officer: Miss Louise Lovegrove
Telephone No. 01733 454439
E-Mail: louise.lovegrove@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: GRANT subject to the signing of a LEGAL AGREEMENT and relevant 
conditions  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site and Surroundings
The application site is located within the development known as Bretton Green.  This was formerly 
a small cul-de-sac of 5 blocks of B1 office employment uses granted permission and built by the 
Peterborough Development Corporation.  However under application references 13/00846/PRIOR 
and 13/01484/PRIOR, it was deemed that prior approval was not required for the change of use of 
the office buildings to C3 residential flats (under the provisions of Part 3 Class J of Schedule 2 of the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended)).  
Accordingly, the existing blocks are currently undergoing conversion and renovation to residential 
flats.  

The site is located within the identified Bretton District Centre, albeit outside the identified Primary 
Retail Area.  The surrounding area is predominantly retail in character with the Cresset Theatre and 
television studios immediately opposite the site.  To the south, is the A47 Trunk Road with an 
intervening shelter belt of mature trees.  Vehicular access to the site is off Rightwell East and there 
is an adopted highway turning head within the north-eastern corner of the site.  

Proposal
The application seeks planning permission to construct three new storeys above the existing building 
and a 4 storey extension to the front to create 13no. 1-bed residential apartments. The scheme also 
includes associated hard surfacing to create car parking and would result in the 'stopping-up' of a 
small section of adopted highway.  

It should be noted that the proposal has been amended from the original submission by: reducing 
the height of the proposed extension to the front by one storey; reducing the size and number of 
residential units from 14no. 2-beds to 13no. 1-beds; and amendments to the proposed car parking 
layout.

This application is being considered in tandem with application reference 14/02078/FUL which seeks 
to alter the elevations of the original dwelling to tie in with this proposal.

23



2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
13/01484/PRIOR Prior approval for change of use from B1a 

office to C3 residential
Prior 
Approval 
Permitted 

21/11/2013

14/02078/FUL Alterations to elevations of existing two 
storey block of flats and creation of lobby

Pending 

13/00846/PRIOR Prior approval for change of use from 
Offices B1(a) to Residential C3

Not 
Required 

22/07/2013

14/01987/FUL Proposed new detached three storey 
building with six two bed flats

Refused 29/01/2015

14/01990/FUL Proposed new three storey building with 
three two bed flats

Permitted 28/01/2015

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Section 7 - Good Design 
Development should add to the overall quality of the area; establish a strong sense of place; optimise 
the site potential; create and sustain an appropriate mix of uses; support local facilities and transport 
networks; respond to local character and history while not discouraging appropriate innovation; 
create safe and accessible environments which are visually attractive as a result of good architecture 
and appropriate landscaping. Planning permission should be refused for development of poor 
design.

Section 11 - Natural and Local Environment 
Should be enhanced through the protection and enhancement of valued landscapes, geological 
conservation interests and soils; recognising the wider benefits of ecosystem services; minimising 
impacts on biodiversity and providing net gains in biodiversity. New and existing development should 
not contribute to or be put at unacceptable risk by unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise 
pollution and land instability.

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS01 - Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
The location/ scale of new development should accord with the settlement hierarchy. Development 
in the countryside will be permitted only where key criteria are met.

CS02 - Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development 
Provision will be made for an additional 25 500 dwellings from April 2009 to March 2026 in strategic 
areas/allocations.

CS10 - Environment Capital
Development should make a clear contribution towards the Council’s aspiration to become 
Environment Capital of the UK.

CS12 - Infrastructure 
Permission will only be granted where there is, or will be via mitigation measures, sufficient 
infrastructure capacity to support the impacts of the development.

24



CS13 - Development Contributions to Infrastructure Provision 
Contributions should be secured in accordance with the Planning Obligations Implementation 
Scheme SPD (POIS).

CS14 - Transport 
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for residents.

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, address 
vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact upon the 
amenities of neighbouring residents.

CS22 - Flood Risk 
Development in Flood Zones 2 and 3 will only be permitted if specific criteria are met. Sustainable 
drainage systems should be used where appropriate.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built and 
natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is sufficiently 
robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of privacy, 
public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or other 
disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

PP04 - Amenity Provision in New Residential Development 
Proposals for new residential development should be designed and located to ensure that they 
provide for the needs of the future residents.

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety.

PP13 - Parking Standards 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made in 
accordance with standards.

PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees and 
natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010
Paragraphs 203-205 of the National Planning Policy Framework: Planning Conditions and 
Obligations:

Requests for planning obligations whether CIL is in place or not, are only lawful where they meet the 
following tests:-

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
(b) directly related to the development; and 
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

In addition obligations should be:

25



(i) relevant to planning;
(ii) reasonable in all other respects.

Planning permissions may not be bought or sold. Unacceptable development cannot be permitted 
because of benefits/inducements offered by a developer which are not necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms. Neither can obligations be used purely as a means of 
securing for the local community a share in the profits of development.

4 Consultations/Representations

Archaeological Officer (05.01.15)
No objections - The application site is not located within an area of known significant heritage assets. 
 The archaeological potential of the site is therefore considered to be low and there is no need to 
secure a programme of archaeological work.

Building Control Manager 
No comments received.

PCC Drainage Team (30.12.14)
No objections - No details regarding drainage have been submitted and as such, request a condition 
relating to surface water drainage to ensure that storm water can be managed on-site to minimise 
the impact of the development on local surface water flood risk.

Education & Childrens Dept - Planning & Development 
No comments received.

PCC Pollution Team (12.01.15)
No objections.

PCC Transport & Engineering Services (08.01.15)
No objections – Request that parking bay no.1 be relocated to elsewhere within the site to ensure it 
does not impede visibility of the access to the parking area.  

PCC Travel Choice 
No comments received.

Waste Management (08.01.15)
Objection - Concerned that the site is not being looked at as a whole in terms of waste management. 
 Underground units would be preferred for Guthrie House as they can potentially be used by some 
of the other blocks being redeveloped which do not have anything with regards to waste 
management.

PCC Tree Officer (26.01.15)
Objection - The loss of the trees is regretted as they are of group value to the visual amenity of the 
surrounding area. There is little or no opportunity for replacement planting.

PCC Senior Recreation Officer 
No comments received.

PCC Strategic Housing 
No comments received.

Section 106 Major Group 
No comments received.

Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service 
No comments received.

26



Bretton Parish Council (28.01.15)
Objection - The building is out of character with other buildings in the area (the buildings are offices 
and not domestic dwellings).  The building is 5 storeys high and of a different material to the other 
buildings.  There will be a lack of parking spaces.  There is a concern about the increase in volumes 
of traffic in the area.  There is also concern that there is no pedestrian crossing on Rightwell East 
which would be a danger to pedestrians trying to get to Bretton Centre.  Originally, the application 
for 4 flats was allowed and we believe in hindsight this was submitted in the event that once 
approved, it would be difficult to object to an application of the current kind.

Police Architectural Liaison Officer (29.12.14)
No objections - There are some outstanding areas with regards to crime and community safety which 
require resolution however these could be addressed by condition.

Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 118
Total number of responses: 3
Total number of objections: 2 (one of which is from the Parish Council above)
Total number in support: 1

One objection has been received from a local resident on the following grounds:
 The development is out of scale and is going beyond the envelope of the existing building.  
 The application refers to other buildings in the area but these are set back from the public 

highway. Those buildings of 4 storeys cannot be seen, masked by lower buildings in front.
 Trees would be removed thus reducing screening to the site.
 Being on the edge of the site, the building would be within a couple of metres of the 

cycleway/footway and close to the underpass.  This would make the building seem intimidating. 
 

 The closeness of the Cresset is an advantage but it requires crossing the road on a bend which 
is difficult at times as there is little warning of approaching cars.  

 Has there been any assessment of traffic management, particularly when workers are 
arriving/leaving the nearby offices?  Adding residents to this congestion would only compound 
the problem.  

In addition, one letter of support has been received on the following grounds:
 The idea of an extension to create flats is very good because it is an opportunity to increase the 

population density in the area and help people, like me, who need a home.

5 Assessment of the planning issues

The main considerations are:
 Principle of development
 Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area
 Landscape implications 
 Parking, access and highway implications
 Neighbour amenity
 Amenity provision for future occupants
 Developer contributions 
 Environment Capital

a) Principle of development
As detailed in Section 1 above, the application site is located within the identified Bretton District 
Centre.  The existing Bretton Green buildings are currently undergoing conversion and 
renovation to C3 residential flats under the 'permitted development' rights for conversion of B1a 
(offices) to C3.  

27



The proposal seeks to extend Guthrie House to create 13 additional 1-bed flats above the 
permitted conversion of the existing building to 4no. 2-bed flats.  

It is considered that, given the surrounding residential uses of the Blocks within Bretton Green, 
further residential accommodation is appropriate.  The site is located within extremely close 
proximity to existing services, facilities and public transport routes which would well-serve the 
proposed occupants and is also within walking distance of the City Hospital, a major employer 
within the locality.  

Furthermore, Policy CS2 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD states that ‘in and adjacent to 
District centres and Local Centres, the Council will encourage schemes for residential 
intensification (including schemes which would exceed the District Centre dwelling figure above 
[this distributes approximately 1300 dwellings to District Centres], providing that the proposed 
development is otherwise suitable in the light of all other policies in the development plan’.  The 
proposal seeks to intensify the current conversion of Bretton Green to residential units and would 
therefore fully accord with the intention of the above policy and would provide significant public 
benefit through the provision of appropriately located residential development.  It is considered 
that the provision of further residential units within the District Centre represents one of the most 
sustainable forms of development (given the access for residents to services, facilities and 
employment opportunities, as well as public transport links) and this would also contribute 
towards the continued vitality and viability of the District centre.  

On this basis, it is considered that the principle of further residential accommodation within the 
District Centre is acceptable and the proposal is therefore in accordance with paragraph 23 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework (2012) and Policy CS2 of the Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD (2011).  

b) Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area
It is acknowledged that the proposal represents significant extension to and remodelling of the 
host building.  The proposal would result in a large building of varying 4 and 5 storeys in height, 
located in a prominent position within the streetscene, particularly when approaching from the 
main roundabout to the west.  Both Bretton Parish Council and a local resident have expressed 
concerns with regards to the design, scale and mass of the proposal.  

Within the locality, there is already a substantial amount of development to three and four storeys 
- particularly the Cresset which extends to a height of 4 storeys.  The Cresset building is set 
almost hard up against the back edge of the highway and appears the most dominant structure 
within the locality.  Whilst the proposal would exceed the height of the Cresset by one storey, 
the top floor of the proposal is set back from the facades of the main bulk of the building.  This 
assists in reducing the overall height of the building and it is considered that it would not 
dominate the surrounding area.  It should also be noted that the site itself and its surroundings 
are fairly isolated in terms of public views.  Rightwell East is accessed predominantly by workers 
travelling to the nearby Royal Haskoning offices, Cresset building and to the overflow car park 
to the rear of Bretton Centre.  Accordingly, it is considered that the site is not prominent and 
does not contribute significantly towards the overall visual amenity and form of the public area.  

Furthermore, the proposed front extension has been reduced in height to 4 storeys to act as a 
bridge between the height of the proposal and the neighbouring units within Bretton Green.  
These neighbouring units are 3 storeys in height and therefore, a step-increase to the overall 
maximum height of 5 storeys would ensure that the proposed development ties in with its 
surroundings.   It is therefore considered that this would not appear unduly dominant or out of 
keeping with the existing development.  

In terms of the siting of the proposal, it is acknowledged that the existing building is set closer 
to the public highway and footway/cycleway than other buildings within Bretton Green.  
Furthermore, at present the site is partially screened by semi-mature trees and shrubbery albeit 

28



the existing building it is clearly visible between a large gap in the tree cover.  Whilst the proposal 
would remove this landscaping and significantly increase the height and scale of the building, it 
is not considered that it would appear incongruous or at odds within the streetscene. The 
proposed building (in combination with the tandem application to re-clad the original building) 
would result in a building of more modern appearance and act as a focal point upon entering 
Rightwell East.  It is considered that the overall design of the proposal is of acceptable quality 
and that the mix of materials (facing brick, white render and cement weatherboarding) would 
enhance the overall appearance of the site.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal would not appear incongruous or at odds with the 
surrounding area and therefore would not result in any unacceptable harm to the character, 
appearance or visual amenity of the locality.  The proposal is therefore in accordance with Policy 
CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).  

c) Landscape implications
As detailed above, the proposal would result in the loss of 16 mature trees which surround the 
existing building.  These trees are of good quality (2no. Category A and 12 no. Category B) 
albeit there are others within the site to be lost which are poor quality (Category C or below).  It 
should be noted that none of the trees are subject to a Tree Preservation Order. The City 
Council's Tree Officer has raised concern regarding their loss given that there will be limited 
opportunity for replacement. 

These concerns are noted however within the locality, there is a considerable amount of tree 
cover, particularly from the backdrop of the shelter belt to the A47 which is situated to the rear 
of the site. In addition, there is already an established gap in the trees surrounding the site which 
leaves the present building open to the street.  Whilst the loss of the trees surrounding the site 
is generally considered unfavourable, a neighbouring development which would have resulted 
in the complete loss of the frontage trees to Bretton Green was refused to ensure that some 
provision was retained.  Overall, it is considered that an adequate level of tree cover would be 
maintained and that whilst some harm would result to the overall appearance of the site, this is 
significantly outweighed by the benefit arising from providing much-needed residential 
development within the District Centre.  

A scheme for replacement low-level planting can be secured by condition to ensure that the 
hard landscaping and physical form of the building is softened.  

d) Parking, access and highway implications

Parking provision
With regards to the existing building, this is currently undergoing conversion to 4no. 2-bed 
residential apartments which does not require the benefit of planning permission.  Whilst there 
are only 7 car parking spaces present within the existing site to serve these units (which falls 1 
below the requirement of adopted parking standards), Officers cannot require any additional 
parking for these units as they are not covered by the application.  However, it is essential that 
these spaces are not lost as a result.  

The application seeks to provide a total of 20 car parking spaces - 13no. for the application 
proposal whilst retaining 7no. for the existing building.  This accords with adopted parking 
standards and as such, the Local Highway Authority is content that no undue pressure for 
parking on the adjacent highway shall result.  It is acknowledged that no visitors parking bays 
are proposed however given the close proximity of public car parks, Officers consider it 
reasonable that visitors could use these facilities and that failure to provide spaces on-site is not 
a sufficient reason upon which to refuse the application and sustain it at appeal.  

The Local Highway Authority (LHA) has requested that one of the parking spaces shown on the 
submitted layout drawing (space no.1) be removed and relocated elsewhere in the site owing to 

29



conflict with the visibility splay onto the highway from the access to the parking area.  This is 
noted however, owing to the arrangement of the bays and manoeuvrability within the area, 
vehicles will have to reverse into the bays and therefore will be exiting this access in a forward 
gear.  Even if a car were to be parked in this space, given the speed that oncoming vehicles 
would reasonably be travelling at (far less than 30mph), there would still be adequate visibility 
to ensure that no conflict and danger resulted.  

Access and highway implications   
The proposed 4 storey front extension to the building would partially encroach upon a section of 
adopted public highway which forms part of the turning head to the Bretton Green development. 
 The LHA considers that the loss of this section would not hinder the ability of 
refuse/service/emergency vehicles to use this turning head or access the site and, subject to 
the relocation of any services underneath, would not object to the stopping up and permanent 
removal of this section of the highway.  This stopping up would be completed following any grant 
of planning permission through a separate application process to the Secretary of State for 
Communities and Local Government.  

It is noted that concern has been raised by the Parish Council and an objector with regards to 
increased traffic volumes along Rightwell East and the nearby roundabout.  These concerns are 
noted however consideration must be given to the previous use of the site and the wider Bretton 
Green development.  As B1 offices, this would have generated a significant level of trips into 
and out of the site at peak times.  Whilst these units are now residential, and other additional 
units have been approved on the site (3no. 2-bed apartments under application reference 
14/01990/FUL), it is considered that the level of traffic generated by the site as a whole including 
the proposed units, would not be significantly more than previously.  This is not a concern 
expressed by the Local Highway Authority and as such, it is considered that the proposal would 
not result in any undue impact upon the public highway network.

Finally, concern have also been raised regarding the lack of pedestrian crossing to Rightwell 
East which would pose a danger for occupants of the residential units wishing to access Bretton 
Centre.  During the period that Bretton Green was occupied as offices, no pedestrian crossing 
existed and the number of people present within the site would be greater than as residential 
units.  It is not considered that the application proposal would result in a significant increase in 
pedestrian crossings.  Furthermore, there is safe crossing point further along Rightwell East 
(approximately 160 metres away from the building) which could be used by occupants wishing 
to cross the highway at a safe point.  

On the basis of the above, it is considered that adequate parking can be provided within the site 
and that the proposal would not result in any unacceptable impact to the safety of the public 
highway network.  The proposal is therefore in accordance with Policy CS14 of the Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough Planning Policies 
DPD (2012).  

e) Neighbour amenity
Given that the neighbouring blocks to the east of the application site are presently being 
converted to residential units, due consideration must be given to the relationship between 
proposed primary habitable windows of both the neighbouring and proposed blocks.  The 
nearest block to the application site is located to the east of the proposed building.  On the side 
elevation which faces the application site, there are windows serving primary habitable rooms.  
These are situated no less than 20 metres from primary habitable windows of the proposed 
extension and this is considered a sufficient distance so as to prevent any unacceptable levels 
of overlooking.  Furthermore, it is considered that the layout of the proposed extension in relation 
to this neighbouring block is such that the proposal would not appear unduly dominant or 
overbearing to neighbouring occupants.  

On this basis, it is considered that the proposal would not result in any unacceptable impact to 
the amenities of neighbouring occupants and is therefore in accordance with Policy CS16 of the 

30



Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies 
DPD (2012).  

f) Amenity provision for future occupants
The proposal is sited in close proximity to the A47 Trunk Road, which runs to the south of the 
site separated from the boundary by a mature tree shelter belt.  Given the proximity of this 
potential noise source, the application has been accompanied by a Noise Assessment.  The 
City Council's Pollution Control Officer has reviewed this assessment and raised no objections 
to the proposal.  It is considered that future occupants would not be subject to unacceptable 
levels of noise or disturbance.  Further, the proposal would afford an acceptable level of space 
within rooms and with adequate privacy.  

In terms of outdoor amenity space, no private area is proposed for occupants and only a limited 
outdoor area would be provided for occupants.  This is not unusual for apartments and instead, 
the proposal would provide balconies and terraces for the individual units, offering a small 
private area of outdoor amenity space.  

With regards to adequate bin provision, it is noted that the Waste Management Team has raised 
concerns regarding the provision shown on the submitted site layout plan for the entire site.  
Whilst this is noted, the current application can only deal with the impacts and provision arising 
from the current proposal, particularly given that the surrounding site is being converted through 
means which did not require planning permission.  There is adequate space within the curtilage 
of the site to accommodate sufficient bin storage to meet standards and within acceptable 
distance of the proposed units.  The Waste Management Team has also advised that they would 
prefer the use of underground bins.  Whilst the final design of the bin storage is to be secured 
by condition, Officers will consult with the Waste Management Team to ensure that the most 
appropriate solution is provided.  

The Police Architectural Liaison Officer has made a number of suggestions with regards to the 
window design and method of glazing in respect of the ground floor flats.  To ensure that these 
units are not subject to an unacceptable crime risk, it is considered appropriate to append a 
condition relating to the glazing specification.  

On this basis, it is considered that the proposal would afford occupants an acceptable level of 
amenity, in accordance with Policy PP4 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

g) Developer contributions
In accordance with Policies CS12 and CS13 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), all 
new development is required to make a financial contribution towards the infrastructure 
demands it generates.  The proposed 13no. 1-bed apartments are required to make a financial 
contribution of £39,000 in accordance with the Peterborough Planning Obligations 
Implementation Scheme SPD (2010), plus a 2% monitoring fee of £840.  The Applicant has 
agreed to enter into a legal agreement to secure this contribution and work is ongoing to finalise 
this.  

h) Environment Capital
To accord with the provisions of Policy CS10 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), a 
condition is proposed to secure a 10% betterment on the target carbon emission rates of the 
building.  

6 Conclusions

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically:
 the application site is located within the Bretton District Centre and the surrounding area of 

Bretton Green is currently undergoing conversion to residential units and accordingly.  The 

31



proposal would represent further residential development within the District Centre which is 
considered acceptable in principle, in accordance with paragraph 23 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (2012) and Policy CS2 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011); 

 the proposal would not result in any unacceptable impact upon the character, appearance or 
visual amenity of the surrounding area, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 it is considered that on balance, any harm resulting from the loss of trees and landscape features 
within the application site is outweighed by the benefit arising from additional residential units 
within the District Centre; 

 there is adequate space within the curtilage of the site to provide sufficient parking to meet the 
needs of the development and no unacceptable impact to the public highway network shall 
result, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and 
Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 the proposal would not result in any unacceptable impact to the amenities of neighbouring 
occupants, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and 
Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 on balance, the proposal would provide an acceptable level of amenity for future occupants, in 
accordance with Policy PP4 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); and

 a financial contribution can be secured to meet the infrastructure needs arising from the 
proposed development, in accordance with Policies CS12 and CS13 of the Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD (2011) and the Peterborough Planning Obligations Implementation Scheme SPD 
(2010).  

7 Recommendation

The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED 
subject to the signing of a LEGAL AGREEMENT and the following conditions:

If the required Section 106 legal agreement is not completed within a reasonable period, then the 
Committee delegates the issuing of a notice of refusal to the Director of Growth and Regeneration 
on the grounds that the development has failed to adequately mitigate its impacts.

Should the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule come into force prior to the 
completion of the Section 106 legal agreement, the development may be wholly liable to the CIL or 
the S106 legal agreement may be amended to exclude those items that could be funded by the CIL. 
Items that could be funded by the CIL will be listed on the Council’s Regulation 123 List in accordance 
with Regulation 123 of the CIL Regulations 2010.

A Regulation 123 List will be adopted by the Council on the same day as the Council’s CIL Charging 
Schedule. Currently, a Draft Regulation 123 List can be viewed on the CIL pages of the Council’s 
website.

C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended).

 

C 2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
drawings:

- Proposed Site Layout (drawing number A_102 Revision B);
- Proposed Ground Floor Plan (drawing number A_2010G Revision A);
- Proposed First Floor Plan (drawing number A_2011G Revision A);
- Proposed Second Floor Plan (drawing number A_2012G Revision A);

32



- Proposed Third Floor Plan (drawing number A_2013G Revision A);
- Proposed Fourth Floor Plan (drawing number A_2014G Revision A);
- Proposed Roof Plan (drawing number A_2015G Revision A);
- Street Elevations (drawing number 3106 Revision B);
- Section A-A (drawing number A_4100G);
- Proposed Elevations (drawing number A_4200G Revision A); and
- Tree Protection Plan (drawing number 2626.TPP).  

Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt.
 

C 3 No development other than groundworks and foundations shall take place until samples and 
details of the following materials have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority:

- Walling and roofing (samples);
- Windows and doors (details);
- Rainwater goods (details); and
- Vents and external flues (details).

 The details submitted for approval shall include the name of the manufacturer, the product 
type, colour (using BS4800) and reference number. The development shall not be carried 
out except in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP2 
of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 4 Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme for the hard and soft landscaping of 
the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
scheme shall include:

- Proposed finished ground and building slab levels;
- Planting plans including retained trees, species, numbers, size and density of planting;
- External lighting; and
- Surfacing materials of all areas of hardstanding.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The external 
lighting and hardstanding areas shall be completed prior to first occupation of the first unit 
and the soft landscaping shall be carried out no later than the first planting season following 
occupation of the last unit.  

Reason:  In the interests of the visual appearance of the development and the enhancement 
of biodiversity, in accordance with Policies CS16 and CS21 of the Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP2 and PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD 
(2012).

 

C 5 Any trees, shrubs or hedges forming part of the approved landscaping scheme that die, are 
removed or become diseased within five years of the implementation of the landscaping 
scheme shall be replaced during the next available planting season by the developers, or 
their successors in title with an equivalent size, number and species to those being replaced. 
 Any replacement trees, shrubs or hedgerows dying within five years of planting shall 
themselves be replaced with an equivalent size, number and species.

33



Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the development and the enhancement 
of biodiversity in accordance with Policy CS21 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 6 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with Section 10 of the 
submitted 'Arboricultural Implications Assessment and Arboricultural Method Statement' 
(reference 2626.AIA.BrettonGreen.JSA dated 9th December 2014) and the tree protection 
details shown on drawing number 2626.TPP 'Tree Protection Plan'.  

Reason:  In order to protect trees approved for retention, in accordance with Policy PP16 of 
the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 7 Development shall not commence until fully operational wheel cleaning equipment has been 
installed within the site. All vehicles leaving the site shall pass through the wheel cleaning 
equipment which shall be sited to ensure that vehicles are able to leave the site and enter 
the public highway in a clean condition and free of debris which could fall onto the public 
highway. The wheel cleaning equipment shall be retained on site in full working order for the 
duration of the development.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012).  

 

C 8 Prior to first occupation of the first unit, the parking, turning and manoeuvring areas shown on 
drawing number A_102 Revision B 'Proposed Site Layout' shall be surfaced, drained and 
marked out in accordance with details submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Thereafter, those areas shall be retained for the purposes of parking, 
turning and manoeuvring of vehicles in connection with the residential units.  

Reason:  In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).

C 9 Prior to first use of the vehicular access serving the parking spaces shown on drawing number 
A_102 Revision B 'Proposed Site Layout' as spaces 1 to 6, a vehicle-to-pedestrian viability 
splay measuring 1.5 metres x 1.5 metres (measured from and along the back edge of the 
public highway) shall be provided to the eastern side of the access.  Thereafter, that visibility 
splay shall be kept clear of any permanent obstruction above a height of 600mm in perpetuity. 

Reason:  In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 
C 10 Notwithstanding the details shown on drawing number A_102 Revision B 'Proposed Site 

Layout' and prior to first occupation of the first unit, cycle parking details for 13 cycles shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The cycle parking 
shall be provided in accordance with the approved details, prior to first occupation of any unit 
and shall be retained for such purposes thereafter.

34



Reason:  In order to encourage more sustainable methods of transport for future occupants, 
in accordance with Policy CS14 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies 
PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 11 Notwithstanding the details shown on drawing number A_102 Revision B 'Proposed Site 
Layout' and prior to first occupation of the first unit, details of refuse storage areas shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The refuse storage 
areas shall be provided in accordance with the approved details, prior to first occupation of 
any unit and shall be retained for such purposes thereafter.

Reason:  To provide an acceptable level of amenity for future occupants, in accordance with 
Policy PP4 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 12 Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme for the provision and implementation 
of surface water drainage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The scheme shall include full and up-to-date design details of the proposed 
drainage systems, including existing runoff rates and how the impact of the development can 
be mitigated.  The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details 
and prior to first occupation of the first unit.  

Reason:  In order to prevent surface water flooding, in accordance with Policy CS22 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011).

 

C 13 The development hereby approved shall be constructed so that it achieves at least a 10% 
improvement on the Target Emission Rates set by the Building Regulations at the time of 
Building Regulations being approved for the development.

Reason: To accord with Policy CS10 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011).
 

35



This page is intentionally left blank

36



37



This page is intentionally left blank

38



Planning and EP Committee 3 March 2015 Item 2

Application Ref: 14/02078/FUL 

Proposal: Alterations to elevations of existing two storey block of flats and creation 
of lobby

Site: Guthrie House, Rightwell East, Bretton, Peterborough
Applicant: Bretton Green Ltd

Agent: Jefferson Sheard Architects

Referred by: Parish Council
Reason: Building uses different materials and will look out of place
Site visit: 05.02.2015

Case officer: Mr L Collins
Telephone No. 01733 454421
E-Mail: lee.collins@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site and Surroundings
The application site is located within the development known as Bretton Green. This was formerly 
a small cul-de-sac of 5 blocks of B1 office employment uses granted permission and built by the 
Peterborough Development Corporation. However under application references 13/00846/PRIOR 
and 13/01484/PRIOR, it was deemed that prior approval was not required for the change of use of 
the office buildings to C3 residential flats (under the provisions of Part 3 Class J of Schedule 2 of 
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended)). 
Accordingly, the existing blocks are currently undergoing conversion and renovation to residential 
flats.  

The site is located within the identified Bretton District Centre, albeit outside of the identified 
Primary Retail Area. The surrounding area is predominantly retail with the Cresset Theatre and 
television studios immediately opposite the site. To the south, is the A47 Trunk Road with an 
intervening shelter belt of mature trees. Vehicular access to the site is off Rightwell East and there 
is an adopted highway turning head within the north-eastern corner of the site.  

Proposal
Permission is sought for the erection of a lobby extension and alterations to the appearance of the 
building.

This application is being considered in tandem with application reference 14/01781/FUL which 
seeks permission to construct three new storeys above the existing building and a 4 storey 
extension to the front to create 13no. 1-bed residential apartments. The scheme also includes 
associated hard surfacing to create car parking and would result in the 'stopping-up' of a small 
section of adopted highway.

39



2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
13/01484/PRIOR Prior approval for change of use from B1a 

office to C3 residential
Prior 
Approval 
Permitted 

21/11/2013

14/01781/FUL Extension to building Pending
Decision

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

4 Consultations/Representations

Bretton Parish Council (28.01.15)
The Applicant had applied for flats with two bedrooms but this had now changed to one bedroom. 
The height of the building is still out of context with the area. To the right of the building is Nu Vets 
which was a single storey building. To the left are two storey buildings. The Cresset in front of the 
building is some distance away, which is not five storey's high. The extension would be very close 
to the cycleway which only goes to accentuate the height of the building. We would once again 
repeat our original objections which I once again set out below 

1. The building is out of character with the other buildings in the area. The other buildings on 
the site are offices and not domestic dwellings.

2. The building is 5 stories high and of a different material to the other buildings
3. There will be a lack of parking spaces
4. There is concern about the increase in the volume of traffic in that area 
5. There is also concern about the fact that there is no crossing on Rightwell East and there 

would be a danger to pedestrians crossing the road from the site to get to Bretton Centre. 
6. Originally an application for 4 flats was allowed and we believe in hindsight this was 

submitted in the knowledge that once approved an application such as the one which has 
been lodged would be submitted knowing it would be very difficult to object to.

40



Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 1
Total number of responses: 0
Total number of objections: 0
Total number in support: 0

No representations have been received in relation to the proposal. The representation referred to is 
from the Parish Council.

5 Assessment of the planning issues

The main considerations are

 The impact of the proposal on the character of the area
 The impact of the proposal on the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings

The impact of the proposal on the character of the area
The appearance of the other buildings within the business park (which have been converted to 
residential use under prior approval) has been altered to give them a more contemporary 
appearance. It is considered that this has worked well and the already altered buildings are 
attractive, sit well within their surroundings and do not appear incongruous.

This proposal introduces some of the elements used on the other buildings, whilst introducing 
render in order to disguise the joins between this building and the proposed extensions. It is 
unhelpful to view this proposal in isolation as it is part of a larger development proposed under 
14/01781/FUL. Plans submitted under that application allow for a better understanding of the 
overall proposal. The wider scheme features cladding boards vertically linking windows within the 
areas of white render, with the top floor being clad in a grey material. These design features 
successfully break up the bulk of the building. Whilst this will result in a building that differs from 
the other buildings in the estate, the overall effect of the changes is to create an attractive, 
contemporary building which is of high enough quality to stand alone within the street scene. The 
building will still feature materials used within the other buildings within the estate which will help all 
buildings integrate with their surroundings.

A condition will be added to the permission requiring approval of all materials prior to their erection 
upon the building to ensure that all materials either match those used within the other buildings or 
are of sufficient quality as to create an acceptable appearance.

The impact of the proposal on the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings
The extension to the lobby is very small and there are no nearby residential properties except for 
those within the small group of buildings that have been converted to residential accommodation. 
No overshadowing or overbearing to the occupiers of these flats will result from the proposal.

Other matters
The Parish Council have objected to the proposal on 6 grounds. 5 of the 6 objections are not 
relevant to this application as they concern the wider development of the building, its use and its 
extension which will be addressed under the report for that scheme. The relevant objection states 
that building will be constructed of a different materials to the other building. Whilst this is partly the 
case the Local Planning Authority does not consider that this will unacceptably harm the character 
of the area for the reasons stated above.

6 Conclusions

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically:

41



- The proposal will not unacceptably harm the character of the area or the amenity of the occupiers 
of neighbouring dwellings; in accordance with policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy 
(DPD) 2011 and policies PP2 and PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies (DPD) 2012.

7 Recommendation

The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED 
subject to the following conditions:

C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended).

 

C 2 No development shall take place until details of the materials to be used on the external 
surfaces of the building and the lobby extension have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The details submitted for approval shall include the 
name of the manufacturer, the product type, colour (using BS4800) and reference number. 
Samples shall be placed on site for evaluation. The development shall not be carried out 
except in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 
 

42



43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



Planning and EP Committee 3 March 2015 Item 3

Application Ref: 14/02126/OUT 

Proposal: Erection of up to nine dwellings

Site: Rear Of 39 Station Road, Thorney, Peterborough, 
Applicant: Mr N Sherwood

Agent: Mr J Dickie, John Dickie Associates

Referred by: Director of Growth and Regeneration
Reason: Given the decision taken by Members on an adjacent site 

Site visit: 11.02.2015

Case officer: Miss Louise Lovegrove
Telephone No. 01733 454439
E-Mail: louise.lovegrove@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: REFUSE  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site and Surroundings 
The application site comprises a parcel of land located on the eastern side of Station Road and 
within the identified settlement envelope of Thorney. To the front of the site are two no. buildings 
which comprise residential flats (6no. 1-bed flats in Sherwood House, No.39 and 3no. 1-bed flats at 
No.41) and there is an existing vehicular access to the site running between these two buildings.  
Within the application site are a series of single storey outbuildings which appear to be in use and 
these are set within an area which appears to have been maintained as amenity space.  There is a 
line of mature Leyland Cypress trees which run north-south through the middle of the site and 
beyond this, an area of grassed paddock land.  

The eastern boundary of the site comprises a belt of mature Norway Spruce whilst the southern 
boundary is formed by a line of mature trees, shrubs and fencing with an agricultural paddock and 
garden land beyond.  To the north of the site there is a residential dwelling known as Shirefield 
House and an industrial unit known as Shirefield Works.  

The application site is not located within the Thorney Conservation Area however it is in close 
proximity to its northern boundary and the Grade II Listed Tankyard building.  

Proposal
The application seeks outline planning permission with all matters reserved (access, layout, 
appearance, landscaping and scale) for the construction of up to nine residential dwellings with 
associated access, parking and amenity space.

45



2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
07/01346/FUL Conversion of house into seven 1-bed flats 

including changes to doors and windows 
and provision of parking and amenity space

Permitted 09/04/2008

09/00180/FUL Conversion of existing dwelling into 5 one-
bed and 1 three-bed self-contained flats - 
retrospective

Permitted 11/05/2009

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Section 66 - General duty as respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the building or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest 
which it possesses.

Section 72 - General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions. 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the Conservation Area or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses.

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Section 7 - Good Design 
Development should add to the overall quality of the area; establish a strong sense of place; 
optimise the site potential; create and sustain an appropriate mix of uses; support local facilities 
and transport networks; respond to local character and history while not discouraging appropriate 
innovation; create safe and accessible environments which are visually attractive as a result of 
good architecture and appropriate landscaping. Planning permission should be refused for 
development of poor design.

Section 10 - Development and Flood Risk 
New development should be planned to avoid increased vulnerability to the impacts of climate 
change. Inappropriate development in areas of flood risk should be avoided by directing it away 
from areas at higher risk. Where development is necessary it shall be made safe without 
increasing flood risk elsewhere. Applications should be supported as appropriate by a site-specific 
Flood Risk Assessment, a Sequential Test and, if required, the Exception Test.

Section 12 - Conservation of Heritage Assets 
Account should be taken of the desirability of sustaining/enhancing heritage assets; the positive 
contribution that they can make to sustainable communities including economic viability; and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness.  When considering the impact of a new development great weight should be given 
to the asset’s conservation.  

Planning permission should be refused for development which would lead to substantial harm to or 
total loss of significance unless this is necessary to achieve public benefits that outweigh the 
harm/loss.  In such cases all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure the new development will 
proceed after the harm/ loss has occurred.

46



Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS01 - Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
The location/ scale of new development should accord with the settlement hierarchy. Development 
in the countryside will be permitted only where key criteria are met.

CS02 - Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development 
Provision will be made for an additional 25 500 dwellings from April 2009 to March 2026 in 
strategic areas/allocations.

CS10 - Environment Capital 
Development should make a clear contribution towards the Council’s aspiration to become 
Environment Capital of the UK.

CS12 - Infrastructure 
Permission will only be granted where there is, or will be via mitigation measures, sufficient 
infrastructure capacity to support the impacts of the development.

CS14 - Transport 
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for 
residents.

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents.

CS17 - The Historic Environment 
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non-
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance.

CS22 - Flood Risk 
Development in Flood Zones 2 and 3 will only be permitted if specific criteria are met. Sustainable 
drainage systems should be used where appropriate.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

PP04 - Amenity Provision in New Residential Development 
Proposals for new residential development should be designed and located to ensure that they 
provide for the needs of the future residents.

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety.

47



PP13 - Parking Standards 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made 
in accordance with standards.

PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees 
and natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity.

PP17 - Heritage Assets 
Development which would affect a heritage asset will be required to preserve and enhance the 
significance of the asset or its setting.  Development which would have detrimental impact will be 
refused unless there are overriding public benefits.

Peterborough Design and Development in Selected Villages SPD (2011)

Thor 12 - Properties Outside the Conservation Area
New buildings should reflect the character of the surrounding development however on sites which 
are not immediately constrained by neighbouring traditional buildings, there may be scope for 
innovation. The design of any development abutting the surrounding landscape should reflect the 
historical and geographical perspective. 

Thor 13 – Building Materials for New Development Outside the Conservation Area that 
Affects the Character and Appearance of the Historic Village in its Landscape Setting
Planning permission should only be granted if the proposed building materials and the manner that 
they are used are sympathetic to the local building tradition. 

Peterborough Flood and Water Management SPD (2012)

Chapter 4 – Guidance on Site Selection for Sites within Flood Zones
This chapter sets out guidance on how to apply the Sequential and Exception Tests.  

4 Consultations/Representations

Thorney Parish Council (10.02.15)
Support - As with the adjacent site immediately to the north, consider this infill site as a preferred 
development site in the village. As a partially previously developed site it complies with our view 
that preference should be given to the development of a Brownfield site. As a site located within 
the village envelope it does not extend development into the surrounding countryside and thereby 
encroach upon the rural setting of the village. This is enhanced by the retention of the area of trees 
at the eastern end of the site which is not included as part of the development site. The site is ideal 
as it is tucked away behind the existing dwelling on the Station Road frontage and, as a 
consequence, will have little or no visual impact on the village. The site is readily accessible from 
the by-pass and is unlikely to generate much traffic through the village. Due to the site's close 
proximity to the sewage works it will not generate the drainage/sewage infrastructure problems that 
are of concern with other sites in the village. We welcome the proposal to construct bungalows as 
this type of dwelling seems popular and viable in the village. The very quick sale of the 5 
bungalows recently constructed to the rear of 81 Wisbech Road with access from Topham 
Crescent, Thorney are evidence of this. We do not feel these dwellings will have a detrimental 
impact on the character, appearance or amenity of the location and we are pleased that the site is 
readily accessible with only minor modifications required to the existing point of entry from Station 
Road. The scale and density of this proposal provides the dwellings with generous gardens and 
provision for parking. As a Key Service Centre we are of the opinion that we need some limited 
growth to help sustain our existing facilities. We therefore welcome the development of infill sites 
such as this with its good proximity to those facilities including the public transport route through 
the village. We are aware that the site is within a flood risk zone but believe that the benefits of this 
development to the community outweigh this risk. There are clearly simple ways of resisting the 
risk through the method and form of construction. We understand that the North Level Drainage 

48



Board who are based in Thorney have no objections to this application. We are also aware that the 
same flood risks applied to the Harlock site immediately to the north of the application site and in 
part to the Rose and Crown public house site to the south of this site and that both these sites 
were granted approval by the City Council. We see no reason why there should not be a 
consistency of approach in the Council's review of this application and we would recommend that it 
is also granted approval.

PCC Tree Officer (08.01.15)
No objections – Whilst the application has been accompanied by an Arboricultural Report, this 
does not precisely detail the trees to be retained/removed.  This is not unacceptable and adequate 
measures can readily be secured by a condition.  

Archaeological Officer (17.12.14)
No objections - Whilst the submitted archaeological appraisal indicates that the site has low 
potential, evidence of seasonal occupation should not be discounted and the site may yield 
important information on depositional sequences.  As such, request a condition securing evaluation 
by trial trenching.   

Building Control Manager 
No comments received. 

PCC Pollution Team (12.01.15)
No objections – Given that the site is located close to the disused railway line and Thorney Gas 
Works, a condition relating to unsuspected contamination is recommended.  In addition, the site is 
located 280 metres from the A47 Trunk Road, close by to industrial uses and nearby noise 
assessments have indicated that the site is likely to be subject to high noise levels.  Therefore, a 
noise assessment is required to identify noise sources and mitigation measures required to ensure 
future occupants are not subject to noise disturbance. 

PCC Transport & Engineering Services (29.12.14)
No objections – It is noted that the proposed access is intended to be adopted public highway and 
that the submitted site layout is indicative only.  Request a number of conditions relating to access 
width (no less than 5.5 metres), provision of parking and turning, junction visibility splays and a 
construction management plan.  

PCC Drainage Team (29.12.14)
No objections – Whilst the Applicant proposes the use of soakaways to deal with surface water 
drainage, this may not be appropriate and a more thorough assessment of the ground conditions 
and water table depth are required.  

PCC S106 Planning Obligations Officer (11.12.14)
Until the precise number and mix of dwelling sizes is known, the exact POIS contribution cannot be 
calculated.

Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service (22.01.15)
Adequate provision for fire hydrants should be made and the full cost should be met by the 
Developer.  

Environment Agency (23.12.14)
No objections – It is the responsibility of the Local Planning Authority to undertake the Sequential 
and Exception Tests in respect of flood risk.  Should these tests be met, request a condition 
requiring implementation of the resilience measures set out in the submitted Flood Risk 
Assessment.  

Waste Management 
No comments received.

49



Police Architectural Liaison Officer (23.12.14)
No objections – Request further consultation once layout is submitted. 

North Level District Internal Drainage Board (30.12.14)
No objections in principle – Require more detail with regards to the surface water drainage 
systems and if run-off exceeds a certain level, levies will be applied.  

Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 13
Total number of responses: 2
Total number of objections: 0
Total number in support: 1 (Parish Council)

One letter of support has been received on the following grounds:
 A development of bungalows is an excellent project, the site is to the north of the village with 

the traffic close to the bypass unlike the proposed development on Woburn Drive which will 
mean all traffic coming down Woburn Drive and through the village.

One further comment was received however this simply requested additional information regarding 
the proposal.  

5 Assessment of the planning issues

The main considerations are:
 Principle of development, including flood risk
 Density and layout
 Access and highway implications
 Impact upon the setting of heritage assets and archaeology
 Neighbour amenity
 Amenity provision for future occupants
 Trees and landscape implications 
 Drainage 
 Developer contributions 

a) Principle of development, including flood risk
As detailed in Section 1 above, the application site is located within the settlement boundary of 
Thorney, a village which itself is identified as a Key Service Centre.  The site has not formally 
been allocated for residential development through the Peterborough Site Allocations DPD 
(2012) and is therefore considered as a ‘windfall site’.  

Policy CS1 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) states that planned growth in the 
rural areas will be focused within Key Service Centres and, to a lesser extent, Limited Growth 
Villages.  In these settlements, new residential sites of more than 10 dwellings will be allocated 
whereas developments for fewer dwellings will be treated as windfall sites. As this current 
proposal falls below the 10 dwelling threshold, it does not represent development for which a 
site would be allocated however it does broadly accord with the focusing of development to 
Key Service Centres. 

In addition to the above, the site falls within Flood Zone 3 which is at the highest risk from 
flooding.  Residential development of this nature falls within the category of ‘more vulnerable’ 
development as defined by the National Online Planning Guidance and accordingly, must be 
subject to assessment through both the Sequential and Exception Tests, as required by the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012). 

As set out above, it is noted that the North Level District Internal Drainage Board and the 
Environment Agency have not raised any objections to the proposal.  However, their purpose 

50



is not to comment upon the proposal in terms of applying the Sequential and Exception Tests 
and this role falls to the Local Planning Authority.  

Sequential Test
Turning first to the Sequential Test, paragraph 101 of the NPPF requires that development be 
directed to those areas which are least likely to flood (i.e. Flood Zone 1) and these are the 
most sequentially preferable sites.  Further, the City Council has its own Flood and Water 
Management SPD (2012) which sets out the process for undertaking such a test.  

The application has been accompanied by a Sequential Test document which details the 
availability of sites which are either allocated or marketed within an agreed area of 
geographical search (Thorney, Eye and Eye Green) and at an agreed size (no smaller than 
the application site).  However, the submitted assessment has not taken into account those 
sites which were previously put forward for allocation and rejected as part of the Site 
Allocations DPD Evidence Base Report.  Many of these sites were rejected owing to ‘need’ 
issues i.e. that other sites within the settlements were available and of a sufficient size to meet 
the required level of growth (25,500 houses by 2026).  Therefore, these rejected sites must be 
considered as part of the Sequential Test.  Accordingly, the application has failed to 
adequately undertake a robust Sequential Test and fails on this basis.  

Notwithstanding the above, the Applicant’s measure of sites being ‘reasonably available’ is 
also rejected.  The Sequential Test undertaken has considered sites as being unavailable by 
virtue of the land not being able to be sold off to the Developer (in the case of larger sites, 
those being able to be sub-divided into smaller plots). This is not accepted as the test is 
whether the development itself can be delivered (i.e. the houses physically built) which could 
be on any land and by any Developer.  Land ownership and what a land owner wants to do is 
not a material consideration and therefore is a reason to discount this assessment.  Within the 
area of search accepted by Officers, there are allocated sites which are both presently being 
developed and are available for development subject to permission.  These unconsented sites 
are still considered to be reasonably available as the ability for the land to be developed is a 
material consideration as part of the site allocation process in 2011/12.  

Exception Test
Turning next to the Exception Test, paragraph 102 of the NPPF sets out two parts which must 
be met: a) that the development would offer wider sustainability benefits to the community 
which outweigh the flood risk; and b) that the development would be safe for its lifetime and 
not result in increased flood risk elsewhere.  In terms of the wider sustainability benefits, the 
Applicant has undertaken an assessment of the proposal based upon the Sustainable 
Community Strategy 2008-21.  This basis is accepted however it is considered that this is not 
the only measure of determining wider sustainability benefits.  

In the case of this application, the proposal seeks to provide open market housing on a 
windfall site.  However, the City Council has set out adequate allocations to meet the 
requirement for housing of 25,500 additional dwellings within the plan period to march 2026.  
Moreover, the Peterborough Five Year Housing Land Supply report from July 2014 
demonstrates that the City Council is achieving an adequate 5-year housing land supply.  On 
this basis, it is not considered that there is an overriding need for the housing proposed by the 
development.  It is the view of Officer’s that this need is fundamental to assessing whether the 
proposal delivers wider sustainability benefits that outweigh the flood risk and in this instance, 
the test is not met.  

In terms of safety and not increasing flood risk elsewhere, the Environment Agency has 
confirmed that they raise no objections to the proposal on this basis.  The submitted Flood 
Risk Assessment details a number of measures to be incorporated into the final design of the 
dwellings (to be secured at Reserved Matters stage) including minimum floor levels and 
design features.  These could readily be secured by way of a condition to ensure that the 
development would be safe for its lifetime.  

51



On this basis it is considered that the application has failed to demonstrate that there are no 
more reasonably available sites located within areas of lower flood risk which could 
accommodate the development and that there is no wider sustainability benefit to the 
community which would outweigh the flooding risks.  Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to 
paragraphs 100, 101 and 102 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy CS22 
of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Chapter 4 of the Peterborough Flood and 
Water Management SPD (2012).  

b) Density and layout
It should be noted that the submitted site layout is indicative only, as at this stage matters of 
layout, appearance, scale and landscaping are reserved. Notwithstanding this, any submitted 
layout must adequately demonstrate that the level of development proposal can be acceptably 
accommodated within the site. 

With regards to the location of the development, it would partially be located on land not 
previously developed.  However, it would be within the confines of the settlement boundary 
and its outer boundary would tie in with the adjacent industrial site to the north.  It is 
considered that physical development in this location would not appear at odds with the 
surrounding locality and would not result in any unacceptable expansion of the settlement or 
impact to the setting of the open countryside to the east.  

Based upon the indicative layout, it is considered that the size of the dwellings proposed 
cannot comfortably be fitted within the site in their present number.  The dwellings would leave 
no outdoor private amenity space for the existing flats within the site and as such, a larger 
area would need to be given over to this thereby reducing the available developable space.  
Notwithstanding this, smaller dwellings or fewer dwellings could be approved on the site and it 
is noted that the application seeks permission for up to 9 dwellings.  As such, it is considered 
that the proposal would, subject to careful design and amendment from the layout shown, 
provide an acceptable density of development.  

On this basis, the proposal is in accordance with Policies CS16 and CS20 of the Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD (2011), Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) and 
Policy Thor 12 of the Peterborough Design and Development in Selected Villages SPD (2011).  

c) Access and highway implications
As detailed in Section 1 above, the application originally sought outline approval for residential 
development with all matters reserved.   Irrespective of this, the Applicant has indicated that 
the access to the site and internal roadway would be put forward or adoption. The Local 
Highway Authority has reviewed the submitted information and raised no objections to the 
proposal.  In terms of the vehicular access, this would need to be a minimum of 5.5 metres 
wide (as it serves multiple dwellings and needs to allow vehicles to pass one another) and 
there is adequate space within the site to accommodate this requirement.  Furthermore, the 
submitted layout is sufficient to demonstrate that adequate parking and turning can be 
provided within the site to ensure that vehicles can enter and exit on to Station Road in a 
forward gear.  

More precise details of the access and internal parking/turning arrangement can be secured 
by condition and resolved at Reserved Matters stage.  

On this basis, it is considered that the proposal would not result in any unacceptable impact to 
the safety of the public highway network and is therefore in accordance with Policy CS14 of 
the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP12 and PP13 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  

d) Impact upon the setting of heritage assets and archaeology
The application site itself is not located within the identified Thorney Conservation Area, 

52



however it is in close proximity to its southern boundary and only separated by a parcel of 
open, undeveloped land.  Furthermore, this southern boundary includes the curtilage of the 
Grade II Listed Tankyard.  Accordingly, any development within the application site must be 
considered in terms of impact upon the setting of these heritage assets.  

The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to preserve or enhance the setting of these 
assets.  Whilst at present there is no development on part of the site, it does fall within the 
identified settlement boundary and would follow the outermost boundary of existing 
development to the north.  Whilst matters of layout, appearance and scale of the proposed 
dwellings are to be reserved, the Applicant proposes that these dwellings do not exceed 1 and 
a half storeys in height.  This would therefore limit the impact of the development, particularly 
when looking towards the Conservation Area and Listed Building from the North.   By virtue of 
the existing development surrounding the site, and the proposed limited scale of the proposal 
(which could be secured by condition), it is considered that the proposal would at least 
preserve the setting of the nearby heritage assets and would not result in unacceptable harm.  

Turning to archaeology, the Applicant has indicated that they believe the site to be of low 
archaeological potential by virtue of the presence of existing buildings.  This is noted however 
the City Council’s Archaeologist has advised that the site could contain evidence for seasonal 
occupation and may yield important information on depositional sequences.  Accordingly, a 
condition requiring evaluation has been requested and it is considered that this would be both 
appropriate and necessary to ensure that no important undiscovered heritage assets are 
harmed by the proposal.  

On the basis of the above, the proposal is in accordance with Sections 66 and 72 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, paragraphs 131 and 132 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD (2011) and Policy PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  

e) Neighbour amenity
Whilst the submitted layout is indicative only, it does show the proposed developable area.  
There are two existing buildings to the front of the site which comprise residential flats.  The 
proposal would leave these flats with very little or no outdoor amenity area.  Whilst this is not 
unusual for residential flats, given the location of the site within a village and not close by to 
areas of public open space, it is considered necessary for the flats to be left with some outdoor 
space for occupants.  This could however be achieved through a revised layout which would 
be submitted at Reserved Matters stage.  Similarly, any future layout would be assessed to 
ensure it retained adequate separation distances to maintain privacy.

On the basis of the above, it is considered that the proposal (subject to appropriate layout at 
Reserved Matters stage) would not result in any unacceptable impact to the amenities of 
neighbouring occupants.  The proposal is therefore in accordance with Policy CS16 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012).  

f) Amenity provision for future occupants

Noise
The application site is located within close proximity to the A47 Trunk Road and the City 
Council’s Pollution Control Officer has advised that noise assessments undertaken in respect 
of nearby sites have identified that noise levels are in exceedance of levels which would be 
deemed acceptable for a good quality of amenity for future occupants.  That does not however 
preclude development, as a series of measures could be introduced which would attenuate 
this noise disturbance.  Accordingly, a condition is deemed necessary which would require a 
detailed noise assessment along with the submission of mitigation measures.  

Contamination

53



Whilst the site itself is not suspected as being a contamination risk, it is located in close 
proximity to a disused railway and the former Thorney Gas Works.  To ensure that no risk to 
human health is posed, the Pollution Control Officer has advised that a condition be imposed 
relating to unsuspected contamination.  This would ensure that if any unsuspected 
contaminants were found to be present within the site, a suitable scheme of remediation would 
need to be submitted and approved.  

On the basis of the above, it is considered that the proposal would afford an acceptable level 
of amenity for future occupants and as such, the proposal is in accordance with Policies PP4 
and PP20 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  

g) Trees and landscape implications 
The application has been accompanied by an Arboricultural Assessment which has broadly 
been accepted by the City Council’s Tree Officer.  However, this assessment does not make 
clear which trees are to be retained and which are to be lost.  As such, a condition has been 
recommended which requires a more detailed assessment be undertaken.  Notwithstanding 
this, there is a belt of trees located to the eastern-most boundary of the site, outside the 
application boundary.  These trees would be retained which would ensure that key landscape 
features would not be lost. Furthermore, appropriate landscaping to the public areas of the 
development could be secured by condition to ensure that the development is softened and 
respects its rural setting at the edge of the village boundary.  On the basis of this, the proposal 
is in accordance with Policy PP20 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2011) and 
Policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  

h) Drainage 
The supporting information accompanying the application details that surface water drainage 
is to be managed through the use of soakaways.  Given that the site is located within Flood 
Zone 3, the City Council’s Drainage Engineer has advised that at this stage, it is unclear as to 
whether soakaways are an appropriate method of drainage albeit no objections were raised.  
Furthermore, the North Level District Internal Drainage Board has raised no objections on the 
grounds of drainage from the site.

Further information has been requested in relation to a detailed ground survey report and 
measure of the ground water level to demonstrate the suitability of this method of drainage.  
This is noted and it is proposed that surface water drainage be dealt with by way of a condition 
to ensure that it is adequately deal with and does not pose a risk of flooding elsewhere.  
Subject to such a condition, the proposal is in accordance with Policy CS22 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011). 

i) Developer contributions 
The Government has recently published revised guidance in respect of pooled financial 
contributions towards the infrastructure demands generated by developments of 10 residential 
units or fewer, and which have a combined floorspace of less than 1000 sqm.  This guidance 
supersedes the Peterborough Planning Obligations Implementation SPD (2010) for qualifying 
developments.  Whilst the proposal meets the first part of the threshold, it is unclear at this 
stage.  However, as the layout, scale and appearance of the dwellings are to be reserved, a 
condition can readily be imposed which limits the overall floorspace.  Subject to such a 
condition, no financial contribution is being sought for the proposed development, in 
accordance with the National Online Planning Guidance.  

6 Conclusions

The proposal is unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material considerations, 
including weighing against relevant policies of the development plan and for the specific reasons 
given below.

54



7 Recommendation

The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Outline Planning Permission is 
REFUSED for the following reason:

 
R 1 The application site is located within Flood Zone 3 and is therefore at the highest risk of 

flooding.  The proposed residential development of up to 9 dwellings, classed as 'more 
vulnerable' development is inappropriate within this location.  The application has failed to 
demonstrate that there are no more sequentially preferable sites available for the proposed 
development and in addition, the proposal would not provide wider sustainability benefits to 
the community that would outweigh the risk of flooding.  Accordingly, the proposal fails to 
meet both the Sequential and Exception Tests with regards to flood risk and is therefore 
contrary to paragraphs 100, 101 and 102 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2012), Policy CS22 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Chapter 4 of the 
Peterborough Flood and Water Management SPD (2012).

 

55



This page is intentionally left blank

56



57



This page is intentionally left blank

58



Planning and EP Committee 3 March 2015 Item 4

Application Ref: 14/02145/FUL 

Proposal: Proposed three bedroom detached dwelling with associated driveway

Site: 17 Castor Road, Marholm, Peterborough, PE6 7JA
Applicant: Mr & Mrs E Flanz

Agent: Mike Leeder, CHQ Partnership Ltd

Referred by: Marholm Parish Council 
Reason: Concerns regarding access safety, parking and design 

Site visit: 05.08.2014

Case officer: Miss Louise Lovegrove
Telephone No. 01733 454439
E-Mail: louise.lovegrove@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site and Surroundings
The application site is located in a prominent position within the village of Marholm, at the junction 
of Castor Road, Walton Road and Stamford Road.  The site is situated between two existing 
residential properties - 16 Walton Road and 17 Castor Road, the latter of which the site forms part 
of the garden.  Within the site itself there is a prefabricated detached single storey garage and 
static mobile home (albeit this does not have planning permission to be sited).  Vehicular access is 
taken via a dropped kerb crossing from Castor Road and there is presently on-site parking 
associated with the host dwellinghouse.  

The application site is located on the edge of the Marholm Conservation Area and situated 
opposite the Grade II Listed War Memorial, located on the village green.  There is a large mature 
Sycamore tree to the front of the site which reaches a height of 14 metres.

Proposal
The application seeks planning permission for the construction of a two storey detached 3-bed 
dwelling with associated access improvements and car parking.  

It should be noted that the application has been submitted following withdrawal of an earlier 
application (reference 14/01310/FUL).  This application was withdrawn to allow the Applicant to 
amend the scheme in response to comments from the Local Highway Authority and City Council's 
Tree Officer.

2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
14/01310/FUL Proposed three bedroom detached dwelling 

with associated driveway
Withdrawn 04/09/2014

59



3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

Section 66 - General duty as respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the building or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest 
which it possesses.

Section 72 - General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions. 
The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of 
preserving the Conservation Area or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses.

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Section 7 - Good Design 
Development should add to the overall quality of the area; establish a strong sense of place; 
optimise the site potential; create and sustain an appropriate mix of uses; support local facilities 
and transport networks; respond to local character and history while not discouraging appropriate 
innovation; create safe and accessible environments which are visually attractive as a result of 
good architecture and appropriate landscaping. Planning permission should be refused for 
development of poor design.

Section 12 - Conservation of Heritage Assets 
Account should be taken of the desirability of sustaining/enhancing heritage assets; the positive 
contribution that they can make to sustainable communities including economic viability; and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness.  When considering the impact of a new development great weight should be given 
to the asset’s conservation.  

Planning permission should be refused for development which would lead to substantial harm to or 
total loss of significance unless this is necessary to achieve public benefits that outweigh the 
harm/loss.  In such cases all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure the new development will 
proceed after the harm/ loss has occurred.

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS01 - Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside 
The location/ scale of new development should accord with the settlement hierarchy. Development 
in the countryside will be permitted only where key criteria are met.

CS02 - Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development 
Provision will be made for an additional 25 500 dwellings from April 2009 to March 2026 in 
strategic areas/allocations.

CS14 - Transport 
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for 
residents.

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 

60



upon the amenities of neighbouring residents.

CS17 - The Historic Environment 
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non-
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety.

PP13 - Parking Standards 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made 
in accordance with standards.

PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees 
and natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity.

PP17 - Heritage Assets 
Development which would affect a heritage asset will be required to preserve and enhance the 
significance of the asset or its setting.  Development which would have detrimental impact will be 
refused unless there are overriding public benefits.

4 Consultations/Representations

Archaeological Officer (05.01.15)
No objections - Whilst the site is located within the medieval core of the village, any remains are 
likely to have been truncated by the presence of the existing garage.  Therefore, there is no need 
to secure a programme of archaeological evaluation.

Building Control Manager 
No comments received.

Education & Childrens Dept - Planning & Development 
No comments received.

PCC Transport & Engineering Services (05.01.15)
No objections - Request a condition requiring the provision of vehicle-to-pedestrian visibility splays.

PCC S106 Planning Obligations Officer (22.12.14)
Following the Ministerial Statement from DCLG dated 28th November we will not be seeking a 
POIS contribution for the proposed development as it falls below the threshold contained in the 
statement of sites 10 units or less and which have a maximum combined gross floor space of 
1,000 square metres.

61



Section 106 Major Group 
No comments received.

Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service 
No comments received.

PCC Conservation Officer (09.01.15)
No objections - The proposal would enhance the sense of place of the village green and would 
accord with the statutory duty to preserve or enhance the setting of the Marholm Conservation 
Area and nearby listed buildings.  Request amendment to the fenestration design of the front 
elevation to better mirror nearby properties.

Marholm Parish Council (19.01.15)
Objection 
1. There is a general safety concern regarding the driveway and its proximity to the T-junction. In 

addition, the existing house at 17 Castor Road's driveway has been reduced in size; this will 
probably mean that they have to reverse out of the driveway on to the road, which will increase 
the risk of an accident occurring. We believe that the highways department should review the 
application and see if there are any amendments required to minimise these risks.

2. There is a concern about the additional parking that may be required outside the property for 
friends and family.  Parking on the side of the road and on the pavement can increase the 
safety risks to other road users and pedestrians. We also do not want people to park on the 
village green.

3. We want the appearance of the house to be in keeping with the line of houses. We don't think 
that the current design, which is stone faced at the front, is in keeping and the house should 
therefore in our opinion be fully rendered. We do not want the house to stand out but to fit in 
and complement the line of houses.

4. We would also like to have a hedge or fence erected to replace the Leylandii that were 
chopped down.

PCC Pollution Team 
No comments received.

Waste Management 
No comments received.

PCC Tree Officer (02.01.15)
No objection - The recommendations of the submitted Arboricultural Report are accepted however 
request further specification by condition.

Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 9
Total number of responses: 3
Total number of objections: 3
Total number in support: 0

Two objections have been received from local residents on the following grounds:
 I always through that this was a Conservation Area.  This house would be crammed into a 

small area, and exit onto Castor Road - a very busy area.
 My main concern is the sewer which goes right across the garden of No.17 Castor Road to a 

manhole near the hedge in the garden which at the moment appears to be covered in rubbish. 
The sewer serves properties along Walton Road and has been blocked at times over the 
years.  

 I do not wish to look out of my kitchen windows (No.16 Walton Road) at a great big stone wall 
when I can look out over the village green.  

 I have no wish to see our lovely village spring up with houses on every field or anywhere they 

62



can be built and for greedy selfish people to make money.  
 These small villages are what they should be and have been for many years.

5 Assessment of the planning issues

The main considerations are:
 Principle of residential development
 Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area and heritage 

assets
 Neighbour amenity
 Access, parking and highway implications
 Tree implications
 Archaeology
 Developer contributions 

a) Principle of residential development
The application site is located within the identified settlement boundary of Marholm, which 
itself is identified in the settlement hierarchy as a 'small village'.  Policy CS2 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) states that development in these villages of any 
windfall site (a site not formally allocated for development) will be limited to only infill or a 
group of no more than 9 dwellings.  The application proposal represents infilling between two 
lines of established dwellings at the heart of the village and therefore, subject to meeting all 
other policy requirements, the principle of residential development is acceptable.  

b) Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area and 
heritage assets
As detailed in Section 1 above, the application site comprises garden land to the side of No.17 
Castor Road (the host dwellinghouse).  This garden land is set between two residential 
properties of identical design, layout and form and which form a row of three blocks of semi-
detached rendered two storey dwellings along both Walton Road and Castor Road.  With 
regards to impact upon heritage assets, as set out above, the site is located on the edge of the 
Marholm Conservation Area and in close proximity to a number of listed buildings (the War 
Memorial, Blacksmith's Cottage, alms houses and Fitzwilliam Arms).  Accordingly, the Local 
Planning Authority has a statutory duty to ensure that all new development either preserves or 
enhances the settings of these heritage assets.  

The Marholm Conservation Area appraisal identifies that the locality of the application site, 
namely the village green, is a focal point of the village particularly by virtue of the presence of 
the War Memorial and village sign. Further, it is an enclosed area given the surrounding 
buildings, stone walls and accordingly has a positive sense of place.  The removal of tall 
conifers to the frontage of the application site has opened up views of the site and emphasised 
a 'gap tooth' effect which leaks space.  The proposed dwelling would infill this existing gap 
within the streetscene and it is the view of Officers and the City Council's Conservation Officer 
that new development on the site would add to the sense of enclosure of the village green, 
enhancing its setting.  

The siting of the proposal would respect the established building lines to both streetscenes 
and would ensure adequate gapping between the dwellings to accord with the established built 
form of the area.  By virtue of this careful siting, the proposal would not appear cramped or 
overdeveloped and it is considered therefore that the presence of a building on this site would 
not detract from the overall appearance of the locality or the setting of either the Conservation 
Area or nearby listed buildings.  

In terms of specific design, the proposal seeks the construction of a detached two storey 
dwellinghouse of traditional form, design and materials.  It is acknowledged that concern has 
been expressed by residents and Marholm Parish Council that this design of dwelling would 
be at odds within the streetscene and that any new dwelling should mirror the design and 

63



materials of the neighbouring dwellings on either side.  However, this is not a view shared by 
Officers or the City Council's Conservation Officer.  It is considered that the use of stone in the 
treatment of the facade, and replica Collyweston slate would result in a building which 
positively enhances the setting of heritage assets.  Whilst a mirroring treatment of render 
would appear to blend into the streetscene, it would have an effect of preserving the setting 
whereas it is considered that the proposal enhances.  it is the view of the Conservation officer 
that a degree of contrast to the neighbouring dwellings would not be harmful to the 
appearance of the locality and that blending of the proposal would represent a missed 
opportunity for creating a more focal point building to enhance the sense of place to the village 
green.  

Some amendments are required to the fenestration treatment at ground floor on the principal 
elevation however this may readily be secured by a suitably worded condition.  

On the basis of the above, it is considered that the proposal would enhance the setting of 
nearby heritage assets and would not result in any unacceptable impact to the character, 
appearance or visual amenity of the surrounding area.  On this basis, the proposal is in 
accordance with Section 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990, paragraphs 58, 131, 132 and 137 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012), 
Policies CS16 and CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP2 and 
PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  

c) Neighbour amenity
Both the host dwellinghouse and neighbouring residential property to the east (No.16 Walton 
Road) have windows at first and ground floor which face towards the application site and serve 
primary habitable rooms (kitchen, bedroom etc.).  With regards to the host dwelling house, the 
proposal would be sited a minimum of 5.4 metres from these windows.  Given that this 
dwelling is occupied by the Applicant, they have already accepted the level of separation and 
consider that it would not be overbearing to their primary habitable rooms.  Some loss of 
natural daylight would result in the mornings given the orientation, however, this is considered 
to be acceptable in light of the ownership arrangements. Irrespective of this ownership matter, 
in the event that the new dwelling were to be sold off, it is considered that adequate separation 
would be maintained to ensure that an acceptable level of amenity remain for occupants of 
No.17 by way of overbearing and overshadowing impact.   

In terms of the separation distance to No.16 Walton Road, this would be a minimum of 5 
metres and it is noted that the occupant of this neighbouring property has objected to the 
proposal on the basis of loss of views from their kitchen window and replacement with a large 
brick wall.  Whilst the loss of views is not a material consideration, potential overbearing 
impact and loss of natural daylight is.  A separation distance of 5 metres is considered to be 
acceptable in this instance.  The dwelling would be sited sufficiently far from primary habitable 
windows so as to not appear a completely dominating feature and the siting is angled so as to 
increase the separation further towards the front of the site.  Furthermore, it is considered that 
this level of separation would be sufficient to ensure an adequate level of natural daylight still 
resulted to those neighbouring primary habitable rooms.  Whilst some overshadowing would 
result in the afternoons, it is not considered that this would be to such a level as to represent a 
wholly unacceptable impact.  

On the basis of the above, it is considered that the proposal would not result in an 
unacceptable level of impact to the amenities of neighbouring occupants.  The proposal is 
therefore in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and 
Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  

d) Access, parking and highway implications
The Local Highway Authority (LHA) has raised no objections with regards to the proposal.  The 
revised access arrangement would provide a safe vehicular and pedestrian access to serve 
both the existing and proposed dwellings, with adequate car parking to meet adopted 

64



standards and serve the needs of both dwellings without creating additional demand on the 
public highway.  It is noted that concern has been expressed from local residents with regards 
to danger caused by intensification of the vehicular access in close proximity to the highway 
junction.  Whilst this is noted, the proposal would not create a significant intensification and the 
access design meets with required standards in terms of safety and visibility.  Whilst vehicles 
associated with the existing dwelling would reverse out onto the highway, this is not an 
alteration from the present situation and does not need to be addressed.  With regards to the 
proposed dwelling, adequate turning is provided within the curtilage of the site to ensure that 
vehicles can enter, turn and exit the site in a forward gear.  

The LHA has requested that 2 metre x 2 metre vehicle-to-pedestrian visibility splays be 
provided at either side of the improved access.  To the east, this is situated within the public 
highway and therefore achievable whereas to the west, it would require the removal of a small 
section of the existing front boundary hedge to the host dwellinghouse.  This can be secured 
through an appropriately worded condition.  

On the basis of the above, the proposal would provide adequate on-site car parking and would 
not result in any unacceptable impact to the safety of the public highway network.  Therefore, 
the proposal is in accordance with Policy CS14 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  

e) Tree implications
As set out in Section 1 above, there is mature Sycamore tree situated to the front of the 
application site, owned by the City Council.  The application has been accompanied by a 
Arboricultural Implications Assessment and Arboricultural Method Statement which estimated 
that there will be a 24% incursion into the Root Protection Area of this tree as a result of the 
proposed development (most notably the amended access and driveway).  The City Council's 
Tree Officer is broadly in agreement with the conclusions of the report however some 
additional specifications have been requested.  Whilst this is noted, the measures accord with 
BS5837:2012, and this is considered acceptable without the need for further information.  

On the basis of the above, the proposal would not result in any unacceptable impact upon 
landscape features of visual amenity importance and is therefore in accordance with Policy 
PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).  

f) Archaeology
The application site is located within the historic core of the medieval settlement however the 
City Council's Archaeologist has advised that there is no need to secure a programme of 
archaeological evaluation.  It is considered that the footprint of the proposal is modest and 
that, given the presence of the existing garage, truncation and damage is already likely to 
have resulted to any potential buried remains.  Accordingly, the proposal would not pose an 
unacceptable risk to undiscovered heritage assets and is therefore in accordance with 
paragraph 128 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy CS17 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP17 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012).  

g) Developer contributions 
The Government recently published revised guidance (paragraph 012) in respect of tariff-style 
planning obligations for developments of 10 dwellings or fewer and which have a maximum 
combined gross floor space of no more than 1000 square metres.  The proposal meets these 
requirements and on this basis, the Local Planning Authority will not be seeking any site-
specific contributions.

h) Other matters

Impact on existing sewers within the site
It is noted that concern has been raised with regards to the impact upon an existing sewer 

65



which runs through the application site.  The Applicant would be required to seek approval 
from the water authority to re-route this sewer if needed but this does not form a material 
consideration for the determination of the application.

6 Conclusions

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically:
 the proposal represents infill residential development on a windfall site which is considered an 

appropriate level of development for Marholm, in accordance with Policies CS1 and CS2 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011);

 the proposed dwelling would not result in any unacceptable impact upon the character, 
appearance or visual amenity of the surrounding area, in accordance with paragraph 58 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD (2011) and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 the proposal would enhance the setting and character of the Marholm Conservation Area and 
nearby listed buildings, in accordance with Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, paragraphs 131, 132 and 137 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 the proposal would not result in an unacceptable level of harm to the amenities of 
neighbouring occupants, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 safe access can be made to the site and adequate on-site parking can be provided to meet the 
needs of both the existing and proposed dwellings, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012);

 the proposal would not result in any unacceptable impact upon landscape features of key 
amenity value, in accordance with Policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD 
(2012);

 the proposal would not result in any unacceptable impact to undiscovered buried heritage 
assets, in accordance with paragraph 128 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012), 
Policy CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP17 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); and

 no financial contribution is required towards the infrastructure demands generated by the 
proposed development, in accordance with the National Online Planning Guidance.

7 Recommendation

The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED 
subject to the following conditions:
 

C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended).

 

C 2 No development shall take place until details of the following external materials have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

- Walling (including mortar mix);
- Roofing;
- Windows and doors;

66



- Cills and lintels; and
- Rainwater goods.  

The details submitted for approval shall include the name of the manufacturer, the product 
type, colour (using BS4800) and reference number. The development shall not be carried 
out except in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 3 Notwithstanding the details shown on drawing number CHQ.14.10899-14 'Proposed 
Elevations' and prior to the commencement of development, revised details of the 
fenestration arrangement to the front elevation of the dwelling hereby permitted shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The details shall 
include cross section drawings at a scale no smaller than 1:2 and elevation drawings at a 
scale no smaller than 1:10, including details of glazing, glazing bars, sills, lintels and finish. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and retained 
as such thereafter.

Reason:  In order to preserve the special architectural and historic character of the 
Marholm Conservation Area, in accordance with Section 72 if the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended), Policy CS17 of the Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 4 Adequate facilities shall be provided within the curtilage of the site for the parking, turning, 
loading and unloading of all vehicles visiting the site during the period of construction and 
the storage of construction materials. 

Reason:  In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the  Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 5 Prior to first occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, the vehicular access to the site 
shall be widened and the areas shown for the purposes of parking and turning provided in 
accordance with the details shown on drawing number CHG.14.10899-12).  Thereafter, 
those areas shall be retained solely for the purposes of access, parking and turning in 
connection with the use of the dwelling in perpetuity.  

Reason:  In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 6 Prior to first use of the amended vehicular access shown on drawing number 
CHQ.14.10899-12, vehicle-to-pedestrian visibility splays measuring 2 metres x 2 metres 
(measured from and along the back edge of the public highway) shall be provided to both 
sides of the access.  Thereafter, those splays shall be kept clear of any obstruction above a 
height of 600mm in perpetuity.

Reason:  In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

67



C 7 Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme for the hard landscaping of the site 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme 
shall include:

- Proposed finished ground and building slab levels;
- Surfacing materials of all areas of hardstanding; and
- Boundary treatments, including gates.  

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and all boundary 
treatments and areas of hardstanding shall be provided prior to first occupation of the 
dwelling.  

Reason:  In the interests of the visual appearance of the development and to protect 
neighbour amenity, in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD (2011) and Policies PP2 and PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 8 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with Section 10 of 
the submitted 'Arboricultural Implications Assessment and Arboricultural Method Statement' 
(reference 2586.AIA.Marholm.Flanz dated 19th September 2014) and the details shown on 
drawing number 2586.TPP 'Tree Protection Plan'.  

Reason:  In order to protect a tree of key amenity value, in accordance with Policy PP16 of 
the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 9 The development hereby approved shall be constructed so that it achieves at least a 10% 
improvement on the Target Emission Rates set by the Building Regulations at the time of 
Building Regulations being approved for the development.

Reason: To accord with Policy CS10 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011).
 

C 10 Notwithstanding the details shown on drawing number CHQ.14.10899-14 'Proposed 
Elevations' and prior to first occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, the proposed first 
floor bathroom window to the western elevation shall be obscurely glazed to a minimum of 
Level 3 obscurity, and non-opening unless the parts of the window which can be opened 
are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed.  
Thereafter, that window shall be retained as such in perpetuity.  

Reason: In order to protect and safeguard the amenities of the adjoining occupiers, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

C 11 Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 1 Classes A and E of Schedule 2 of the Town & 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and 
re-enacting that Order with or without modification), extensions or detached 
outbuildings/enclosures shall be constructed other than as those expressly authorised by 
any future planning permission. 

Reason: In order to protect the amenity of neighbouring occupants, in accordance with 
Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

 

68



LOCATION 

PLAN

69



This page is intentionally left blank

70



Planning and EP Committee 3 March 2015 Item 5

Proposal: East Coast Main Line (ECML) Level Crossing Closure Programme

Case officer: Miss V Hurrell & Mrs T Nicholl
Telephone No. 01733 453480
E-Mail: victoria.hurrell@peterborough.gov.uk

theresa.nicholl@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: Committee note the contents of the report and offer any additional 
comments it would like to make to Network Rail at this stage

1 Background and Description of the Proposal

Network Rail (NR) proposes to close a number of level crossings on the East Coast Main Line 
(ECML) between London and Doncaster as part of a programme to make the line more efficient 
and reliable. The works will help facilitate the introduction of faster trains (125mph) thereby 
reducing journey times. The programme will also improve rail safety as a consequence of the 
removal of the crossings.

Within Peterborough, the closure of the following level crossings is proposed;

 Woodcroft (Woodcroft Road to the southeast of Helpston) – shown on plan 1
 Helpston (Glinton Road, Helpston) – shown on plan 1
 Maxey (Maxey Road, Helpston) – shown on plan 2
 Lolham Bridges and Helpston Footpath (north of B1443 and NE of Bainton – shown on      

     plan 3

The attached drawings, which are for illustrative purposes only at this stage, set out alternative 
access arrangements. These are considered in more detail in section 2 of this report.

The level crossing at Tallington (outside Peterborough City Council’s (PCC) administrative area) is 
also proposed to be closed.  Network Rail are, however, including Tallington Crossing as part of 
this group of proposed crossings closures because of the cross boundary traffic/transport 
implications.

The drawings referred to have been produced by Network Rail (and their consultants) and have 
recently formed part of a recent public consultation event that included exhibitions at local villages.  
Parish Councils and residents now have the opportunity to make comments on the proposals to 
Network Rail

Later this year, Network Rail intends to submit applications under the Transport and Works Act 
1992 to the Secretary of State for Transport to obtain permission to carry out the level crossing 
closures.  These applications will be accompanied by supporting technical information including an 
Environmental Impact Assessment(s) which will cover aspects such as the landscape and visual 
impacts of the proposals and mitigation, heritage impacts, noise and vibration and ecological 
impacts (the scope of this assessment will be decided by the Secretary of State) and a Transport 
Assessment.

 Planning permission will not be required from PCC and as such PCC will not be the determining 
authority.  PCC will be a consultee as will other organisations such as English Heritage and the 
Environment Agency.  Network Rail is obliged to undertake pre-application consultation before 
submitting the applications which is why it is undertaking the current consultation. There will be 
further consultation as the project moves forward, prior to the submission of the applications to the 
Secretary of State.

71



Impacts of the closures on the highway network will be a key (if not the key) issue.  Network Rail is 
using the Peterborough Transport Model. This is the Council’s transport model which can be used 
to predict the traffic impacts of development on the road network in the context of the proposed 
growth of the city. This model is being used to assist with producing a baseline of traffic data 
together with current traffic surveys. The methodology for producing the anticipated impacts on 
traffic volumes and flows is being agreed with both PCC Highways and Lincolnshire Highways as 
the adjacent Highway Authority. Road closures to enable the closure of some crossings will likely 
impact traffic movements across a wide area and will not respect nominal boundaries. This work is 
on-going and therefore the purpose of this report is not to provide detailed comments on highways 
and traffic implications of the proposals at this stage. These will be reported to members of the 
Planning and Environmental Protection Committee at the time when the impacts have been 
identified along with the mitigation measures being proposed.  

The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ views on the comments we are able to make thus 
far in relation to each proposal and to see if Members wish to add any further comments at this 
stage.  These comments will be forwarded to Network Rail.  As already indicated there will be 
further opportunities for PCC to comment later in the process.  Once the applications are submitted 
to the Secretary of State it is likely that the proposals will go before a Public Inquiry where PCC 
and other interested persons or parties can take part.

The following comments are limited to planning matters. It is not the role of PCC as Local Planning 
Authority (LPA) to comment on individual property rights (issues such as land values, loss of 
property value, compensation etc.)  However, the Environmental Assessment will need to assess 
impact on residential amenity and the property mentioned below represents only the very nearest 
to the proposals.

2 Comments on the proposed level crossing closures (information to date)

General Comments:

 The above comments are solely based on the illustrative plans and may be subject to 
change once detailed design and the transport work is completed.

 The LPA cannot expect or request Network Rail to carry out mitigation or works that go 
beyond what is needed to make the development acceptable but does expect negative 
impacts as a result of the development to be appropriately mitigated.

 It is not the role of PCC as Local Planning Authority to comment on individual property 
rights (issues such as land values, compensation etc.).  Any compulsory purchase 
necessary would be dealt with through the Transport and Works Act process but unless 
PCC is a landowner, it will not be the role of PCC to represent third party property interests.

 Once the proposals are more refined, the LPA will re-assess against adopted development 
plan policies and report again to Committee.

Woodcroft Level Crossing (Plan 1)

Network Rail proposes to remove the level crossing at Woodcroft Road by stopping up the road at 
each side of the railway line.  A turning head will be provided at the end of each stopped up road.  
Woodcroft Road presently forms part of the Peterborough Green Wheel Cycle route.  A new Public 
Right of Way (PROW) in the form of a bridleway with cyclepath is proposed to be created from a 
point just to the south of the current level crossing and adjacent to Ram Dike.  The new PROW will 
follow the course of the dike to the northwest up to a point where the main settlement of Helpston 
begins.  It would then turn north to run along the track which runs to the rear of the properties in 
Mill Field Close and Arborfield Close, Helpston.  The PROW would join the B1443 Glinton Road in 
Helpston at the point where the proposed Helpston level crossing road diversion would begin.

72



There are several “smallholdings” many of which contain stable buildings to the north of Woodcroft 
level crossing and there is property at the crossing including Railway Cottages to the north of the 
crossing and The Bungalow to the south of the crossing.  

Comments:

 No objections in principle to the closure of this level crossing or the proposed bridleway 
route.

 The highway appears to be lightly trafficked and the closure will affect a small number of 
motorists, horse riders and perhaps some local farmers although we reserve final 
comments until the transport work is completed

 The physical impact of the works on the landscape will be minimal
 The physical impact of the works on residents will be minimal
 The new bridleway/cycleway link is welcome in principle

Helpston Level Crossing (Plan 1)

Network Rail proposes to close Helpston level crossing by stopping up the highway to either side 
of the tracks.  A new road would be provided to the south of the existing road which would bridge 
over the railway line thus removing the need for a level crossing.  The position of the proposed new 
road is shown on illustrative Plan 1.  It would commence immediately to the west of the tracks on 
the on the B1443 Glinton Road and adjacent to properties; Former Station Master’s House (97), 
97A and Nurseryman’s Cottage, Glinton Road, Helpston.  It would sweep southwards and would 
begin to rise before turning east/northeast and over the railway line, turning northwards and 
sweeping down to re-join the B1443 near to properties; The Elms (north side of Helpston Road), 
Glenderry, Helpston Road and 1 Helpston Road, Etton.  The rise of the new road would be 
mounded on either side of the railway line.  Access would be provided to existing properties.  At 
the eastern end of the new road a turning spur would be provided for access to properties fronting 
the B1443 as stopped up.  A footpath cycleway will be provide alongside the new road.

Comments:

 In principle, the closure would be supported subject to traffic and other issues being 
adequately dealt with because the level crossing causes lengthy delays.

 The new road will be highly visible in the flat landscape, however, any raised road in this 
location will be highly visible. There are other bridge structures in the general area.

 The indicative route appears to be a reasonable compromise between unnecessary 
incursion of a highly visible road into the open countryside and minimising impact on nearby 
listed buildings namely 86 Glinton Road (adjacent the level crossing) and the Grain store 
(café accessed off a track adjacent the level crossing), and impact on residential amenity

 We expect the environmental statement to accompany the application (to the Secretary of 
State) to include a detailed noise and visual amenity report into the impact of the 
development upon the nearest properties and appropriate mitigation to be provided where 
necessary (taking into account heritage assets).  

Maxey Level Crossing (Maxey Road, Helpston) Plan 2
The proposal is to close the Maxey level crossing at Maxey Road on the edge of Helpston.  The 
road would be stopped up at either side of the tracks.  It is proposed to put a new bridleway bridge 
to the west of the level crossing that will bridge over the tracks.  The bridge would be landscape 
bunded to the north and south of the tracks.  It will not be open to through traffic but would be 
gated to allow access only to farmers/landowners who own land in the immediate vicinity and 
emergency services/network rail operatives.  The new bridge will allow access to Crossing 
Cottages located to the north of the tracks.  There is residential property to the south and east of 
the point where the bridge would turn west off Maxey Road, including a site currently being 
developed for housing.

73



The site of the new bridge would partially lie within Flood Zone 2 and the outer buffer of a gas 
pipeline.  The bridge over the south drain (just to the south of the level crossing) is grade II listed.

Comments:

 Maxey Road is moderately trafficked during the week, less so at weekends.  The transport 
assessment will need to demonstrate that the closure of Maxey Road to through traffic will 
not lead to unacceptable increases in traffic in other villages and on minor roads and that 
impacts are properly mitigated (further comment can only be made once the transport 
proposals are clearer).  Subject to this (and other details being acceptable), the principle of 
closing this level crossing and closing Maxey Road to through traffic is supported.

 The bridge will be highly visible locally but its position is logical given the constraints.
 We expect the environmental statement to accompany the application (to the Secretary of 

State) to include a detailed noise and visual amenity report into the impact of the 
development upon the nearest properties and appropriate mitigation to be provided where 
necessary (taking into account heritage assets). 

 There will be some impact upon the amenity of existing properties, especially a new 
development of 5 houses but this impact is considered to be within acceptable limits given 
the limited amount of traffic which will use the bridge. 

 The submission must set out how flood prevention and surface water matters will be 
adequately dealt with 

 The setting of the listed bridge will need to be properly considered in the environmental 
statement

Lolham Bridges level crossing and Helpston Footpath Crossing (plan 3)

The proposal is to close the level crossing at Lolham Bridges by stopping up the road to the north 
and south of the tracks thus closing this route to through traffic (see Helpston Footpath below for 
footpath links).  A turning area would be provided to the north of the tracks and a car park will be 
created to the south of the tracks (adjacent to the new Helpston Footpath bridge).  There are 
several constraints at this site;  Lolham Bridges are both a scheduled monument and grade II* 
listed, which makes them of national significance; Maxey Cut lies just to the north of the level 
crossing (running east-west) and South drain runs east-west to the south of the level crossing.  
The former Bainton Quarry pit lagoons are to the west of the level crossing. The area is within flood 
zones 2 and 3.  

The highway passing over Lolham Bridges links the A1175 in the north (at West Deeping) with the 
B1443 to the south.  For the status of this highway it is heavily trafficked and it seems apparent 
that the route is used as a “rat run.”

Currently the Helpston Footpath 1 crosses over the tracks just to the southeast of Lolham Bridges 
adjacent to the point where South Drain passes underneath the tracks.  Helpston Footpath 1 
continues to the east through fields towards Helpston and also southerly, along the road.  For 
practical purposes it joins with Bainton Footpath 5 which runs to the northwest alongside Maxey 
Cut.  It is proposed to replace this footpath crossing with a new ramped and stepped bridleway 
bridge.  This would ensure that the footpath, bridleway and cycle links at this site are maintained.  

Comments:

 The closure of the level crossing and the route to through traffic will divert the existing traffic 
elsewhere. The traffic modelling must provide a robust “picture” of where this traffic will be 
diverted to. There are presently concerns that this traffic will be diverted to and through 
other villages where any significant increases in traffic will be inappropriate/unacceptable.  
We will expect diverted traffic to be encouraged to use major routes. Further comment 
cannot be made until the outcome of the on-going traffic modelling and proposed mitigation 
is known

74



 Linked to the above point, any mitigation to deal with any ‘diverted’ traffic will need to 
consider the historical context of the area to ensure that it is appropriate from a heritage 
perspective. 

 It is agreed that the constraints of the area around Lolham Bridges, particularly the 
scheduled monument and grade II* status of the bridges, mean that it would be 
inappropriate to construct a new road to accommodate through traffic as is proposed at 
Helpston, as this would have an adverse impact upon the setting of the Bridges. The 
surrounding water environment would mean that such a structure would be a very 
significant and dominant feature in a sensitive landscape.  As such the principle of a 
bridleway/cycleway bridge only is supported (if in terms of the traffic issues noted above, 
the impacts of the closure can be appropriately mitigated).

 The creation of a new footbridge will create an intrusion into the landscape and will to an 
extent affect the historic setting of the bridges.  More comment will be made once a detailed 
design is produced.  It is accepted that removing significant traffic from the scheduled 
monument will be beneficial to its preservation. It is accepted that the design of the bridge 
will need to ensure it functions for riders, cyclists and walkers.  However, given the setting a 
utility type structure should be avoided where possible and the bridge should be of the 
highest design and quality that is possible.

 The creation of a car park for people wishing to visit the Lolham Bridges area is welcome, 
however there are some concerns about possible mis-use of the car park and it is 
considered that entry to the car park will need to be managed.

7 Recommendation

That Members endorse the comments set out above and report any further comment they wish to 
make at the meeting in order that officers can forward the comments to Network Rail on behalf of 
PCC as Local Planning Authority.

 

75



This page is intentionally left blank

76



OS Location Plan

OVERVIEW

Jan 201570000382-LX107-EXB2-01 B

KEYPreferred Option

Existing level crossing

to be closed

Close Helpston crossing and construct a new

highway bridge approximately 250m south of the

existing crossing to minimise the length of

diversion. The new bridge will include a 3m wide

footway/cycleway shared surface providing a

segregated route to the east of Helpston.

Close Woodcroft crossing and divert users of the

Peterborough Greenwheel cycle network via

Helpston bridge and a dedicated new public

bridleway/cycle path between Glinton Road and

Woodcroft Road.

Existing route between start and end of diversion =

850metres.

Proposed diversion route = 2.5km.

An indicative level of temporary construction tra"c

is likely to average 30 to 40 vehicles per day over

the period of construction.

Helpston and Woodcroft are public highway level crossings on the

East Coast Main Line. It is proposed to close both level crossings

on the East Coast Main Line (ECML). We recognise Helpston level

crossing is a vital link road serving the Helpston community and

propose to provide a new bridge over the ECML to preserve

existing highway links for all users.

Woodcroft public highway (unclassi#ed) level crossing forms part

of the Peterborough Green Wheel (Region Route 21) cycle

network. We are seeking to close Woodcroft crossing and provide

an alternative route for the Peterborough Greenwheel cycle

network.

Access to the railway at the level crossing will be prevented with

the provision of new fencing. Locked access may be retained for

Network Rail and emergency access.

Helpston Level Crossing User Census - March/April 2014

User
Average Weekday

Daily Users

Average Weekend

Daily Users

Vehicles 3082 2488

Cyclists 114 111

Horse Riders 0 0

Pedestrians 23 27

Preferred option shown is illustrative and for consultation purposes

only.

EAST COAST MAIN LINE
LEVEL CROSSING CLOSURE PROGRAMME ( FEASIBILITY STUDY )

HELPSTON AND WOODCROFT PREFERRED OPTION [Ref: HLP]

Proposed landscaped

earthworks

Proposed new carriageway

Proposed grassed highway

verge

Proposed footway/cycleway

Helpston

To Etton

To Woodcroft Castle

To A15

Helpston Level

Crossing

Woodcroft

Level Crossing

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the

permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her

Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised

reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution

or civil proceedings.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey

100016037 & 0100040692.

B1443 diverted

via new bridge

over the ECML

Access to existing

properties

(reduced width)

East Coast Main Line

Maxey

Helpston

Woodcroft

EXISTING LEVEL CROSSING

LOOKING EAST

Proposed Woodcroft diversion route

over new dedicated Public Right of

Way: Bridleway and cycle route

Woodcroft level crossing

diversion route. Provide

dedicated new Public Rights

of Way: Bridleway with cycle

path provision.

Lolham &

Helpston FP

2
1

Footpath Helpston 2

Highway to be

stopped up

Public highway to be retained

for access to properties

Drainage basin with

outfall to existing ditch

Area for drainage

attenuation

basin/pond and

landscape mitigation

Landscape

screening

Temporary construction

compound. Permanent

area for drainage

balancing ponds and

landscape mitigation

3m shared cycleway

and footway

alongside new road

Ditch to be culverted

under embankment

Provide access to

existing properties

Existing road to be

stopped-up

Area for landscape

and ecology

Culvert ditch to

connect bridleway to

Woodcroft Road

Indicative temporary

construction compound area

Landscaped screening and

Ecology mitigation area

A

A

INDICATIVE CROSS SECTION AT A-A

Drainage basin with

outfall to existing ditch

Culverted ditch

crossing

Turning head to

Woodcroft Road

adjacent to level

crossing

Pedestrian

crossing point

Possible speed

restraints

Possible speed

restraints

Proposed Woodcroft and

Peterborough Greenwheel cycle

diversion route over Public Highway.

Woodcroft Level Crossing User Census - March/April 2014

User
Average Weekday

Daily Users

Average Weekend

Daily Users

Vehicles 32 41

Cyclists 5 35

Horse Riders 1 3

Pedestrians 0 6

1 Visualisation view point

Provide access to

existing properties

PLAN 1

77



This page is intentionally left blank

78



OVERVIEW

Jan 201570000382-LX109-EXB2-01 A

KEYPreferred Option

Existing level crossing

to be closed

Close this crossing to all tra"c and replace it with a

bridleway bridge approximately 100m west of the existing

crossing for bridleway users and authorised vehicle access

from Helpston to the Crossing Cottages, and agricultural

land immediately to the north of the crossing.

All other motor vehicle tra"c to follow diversion routes via

existing public highway and new bridge crossings at

Helpston and Tallington.

An indicative level of contemporary construction tra"c is

likely to average 30-40 vehicles per day over the period of

construction.

This is currently a public highway level crossing. We are seeking to

close this  level crossing on the East Coast Main Line (ECML). We

recognise full closure of this crossing will sever access between

Helpston and Crossing Cottages, and the wider countryside to the

north, so we propose to provide a new bridleway bridge crossing

over the ECML with limited vehicle access rights for essential users

only.

Access to the railway at the level crossing will be prevented with the

provision of new fencing. Locked access may be retained for

Network Rail and emergency access.

Maxey Level Crossing User Census - March/April 2014

User
Average Weekday

Daily Users

Average Weekend

Daily Users

Vehicles 502 381

Cyclists 17 52

Horse Riders 0 0

Pedestrians 8 9

Preferred option shown is illustrative and for consultation purposes

only.

EAST COAST MAIN LINE
LEVEL CROSSING CLOSURE PROGRAMME ( FEASIBILITY STUDY )

MAXEY PREFERRED OPTION [Ref: MAX]

Proposed landscaped

earthworks

Proposed new carriageway

Proposed grassed highway verge

Helpston

Maxey

Level Crossing

d
a

o
R 

y
e

x
a

M

To

Maxey

East Coast Main Line

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the

permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her

Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised

reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution

or civil proceedings.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey

100016037 & 0100040692.

Proposed accomodation

bridge over the ECML

Existing drain

culverted under new

embankment and

#eld access track

EXISTING LEVEL CROSSING

LOOKING NORTH

Tallington

Maxey
Helpston

Casewick

OS Location Plan

Woodcroft

EXISTING LEVEL CROSSING

LOOKING SOUTH

Lolham &

Helpston FP

Gated vehicle access,

bridleway traffic routed

around gates

Passing place

Gated vehicle access,

bridleway traffic routed

around gates

Passing place

Passing place

Area for $ood compensation

Drainage

attenuation basin

with out$ow to

existing ditch

Area for temporary

construction compound

and permanent landscape

screening, ecology

mitigation and flood

compensation

Passing place

A

A

Culverted ditch

Vehicle speed

reduction feature

Vehicle speed

reduction feature

Crossing

cottages

Proposed alternative farm access

Proposed #eld

access track

INDICATIVE CROSS SECTION AT A-A

Speed reduction feature

Indicative construction

compound area

Proposed drainage features

Vehicle turning head

to Maxey Road

2

1

Landscaped screening and

Ecology mitigation area

Vehicle turning head

to Maxey Road

Drainage

attenuation basin

with out$ow to

existing ditch

1 Visualisation view point

PLAN 2

79



This page is intentionally left blank

80



OS Location Plan

OVERVIEW

Jan 201570000382-LX113-EXB2-01 A

KEYPreferred Option

Existing level crossing

to be closed

Close Lolham and Helpston Footpath crossings to all tra"c

and construct new stepped and ramped pedestrian/cycle

footbridge over the ECML at Helpston Footpath crossing.

Provide a new bridleway/cycleway link from Lolham to new

bridge crossing over the ECML at Helpston Footpath.

Vehicular users to follow local diversion routes via existing

public highway and new bridge crossings at Tallington and

Helpston.

An indicative level of temporary construction is likely to

average 10 to 20 vehicles per day over the period of

construction.

It is proposed to close Lolham public highway (unclassi#ed) level crossing and Helpston

Footpath public footpath on the East Coast Main Line (ECML). Lolham crossing is located

adjacent to a number of Scheduled Monument highway bridges over Maxey Cut. We are keen

to preserve the historic character of these structures and minimise the impact of any new bridge

structure over the ECML in this location.

We propose to provide a new bridleway bridge over the ECML at Helpston Footpath crossing to

preserve recreational access with additional vehicle turning and car parking provision both

sides of the crossing. Vehicle diversion routes will be implemented via new road bridges at

Tallington and Helpston.

Access to the railway at the level crossings will be prevented with provision of new fencing.

Locked access may be retained for Network Rail and emergency access.

Lolham Level Crossing User Census - March/April 2014

User
Average Weekday

Daily Users

Average Weekend

Daily Users

Vehicles 1724 1248

Cyclists 40 90

Horse Riders 0 1

Pedestrians 2 10

Preferred option shown is illustrative and for consultation purposes only.

EAST COAST MAIN LINE
LEVEL CROSSING CLOSURE PROGRAMME ( FEASIBILITY STUDY )

LOLHAM AND HELPSTON F.P PREFERRED OPTION [Ref: LOL]

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the

permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her

Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised

reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution

or civil proceedings.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey

100016037 & 0100040692.

Maxey

Helpston

Woodcroft

EXISTING LOLHAM LEVEL CROSSING

LOOKING SOUTH

East Coast M
ain Line

Proposed bridleway/cycle route

Upgrade existing

hardstanding to turning area

and additional car parking.

This will also act as a

temporary construction area

Existing footpath

Lolham &

Helpston FP

Footpath Helpston 1

Footpath Bainton 5
F

o
o

tp
a

th
 H

e
lp

sto
n

 1

Creation of hard standing

carpark area and temporary

construction area

EXAMPLE FOOTBRIDGE VISUALISATION

Upgraded existing footpath to bridleway

Proposed dedicated

bridleway with cycle

provision

Indicative construction

compound area

Proposed car parking area on hard

standing/temporary construction compound

Helpston Footpath

Level Crossing

Lolham

Level Crossing

Upgrade existing cyclepath

Lolham Bridges

Scheduled Monuments

Lolham Bridges

Scheduled Monuments

Ramped and stepped

bridleway bridge

PLAN 3

81



This page is intentionally left blank

82


	Agenda
	4.1 20 January 2015
	4.2 3 February 2015
	5.1 14/01781/FUL - Guthrie House, Rightwell, East Bretton, Peterborough
	5.1 14/01781/FUL - Guthrie House, Rightwell, East Bretton, Peterborough
	5.1 1401781FUL Guthrie House

	5.2 14/02078/FUL - Guthrie House, Rightwell, East Bretton, Peterborough
	5.2 14/02078/FUL - Guthrie House, Rightwell, East Bretton, Peterborough
	5.2 1402078FUL Guthrie House

	5.3 14/02126/OUT - Rear of 39 Station Road, Thorney, Peterborough
	5.3 14/02126/OUT - Rear of 39 Station Road, Thorney, Peterborough
	5.3 1402126OUT Rear of 39 Station Road

	5.4 14/02145/FUL - 17 Castor Road, Marholm, Peterborough, PE6 7JA
	5.4 14/02145/FUL - 17 Castor Road, Marholm, Peterborough, PE6 7JA
	5.4 1402145FUL 17 Castor Road

	5.5 East Coast Main Line Level Crossing Closure
	5.5 East Coast Main Line Level Crossing Closure
	5.5 Level Crossing Closures

	5.5 East Coast Main Line Level Crossing Closure
	Plan 1 level crossing closuresA4

	5.5 East Coast Main Line Level Crossing Closure
	Plan 2 level crossing closuresA4

	5.5 East Coast Main Line Level Crossing Closure
	Plan 3 level crossing closuresA4


